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The dream of every small business is to become big, but the growth of company size doesn’t necessarily make a better enterprise.
When the pursuit of size is not bearing fruits, it may be a time for enterprises to look at the other end of the scale and act small again.
It sounds paradoxical but small enterprises should look bigger in their customers’ eyes while large enterprises should
stay small to engage their customers. Can you see the bigness in small businesses?
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Our Vision

RFEFRIETTEENIRENH

Be your most preferred productivity partner

fE

Our Mission

BOBmENERERSBOEE N - IBABRENR
RERRE -

Promote productivity excellence for industry to
enhance competitiveness and sustainability

INEB

Our Core Values

« TEIEER Integrity

+ FAESE Integration

«  EERIFT Innovation

«  AYRIE Impartiality

o PAANRZ People

« FILZE1E Passion

+  SHZAETB Professionalism
«  HE@EFT Partnership
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Our CorporateglelTain

HKPC
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The two-toned parallel lines forming the
corporate identity (Cl) of HKPC signify our
longstanding partnership with Hong Kong

industry through rain or shine.
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Productivity is the effective use of innovation and
resources to increase the value-added content of
products and services.

The Hong Kong Productivity Council (HKPC) is a multi-
disciplinary organization established by statute in 1967.
HKPC's mission is o promote productivity excellence for
industry fo enhance competitiveness and sustainability.
Through the provision of integrated support across the
value chain, HKPC strives to assist Hong Kong enterprises
to achieve the more effective utilization of resources,
enhance the value-added content of products and
services, and to increase international competitiveness.

HKPC is governed by a Council comprising a Chairman
and 22 members. This Council represents managerial,
labour, academic and professional interests, as well

as related government departments in Hong Kong.
HKPC's operations are supported by fee income from its
services and government subventions.

HKPC's headquarters at HKPC Building in Kowloon Tong
features various advanced manufacturing and festing
facilities as well as exhibition and training venues.
HKPC also operates three wholly-owned subsidiaries

in Guangzhou, Dongguan and Shenzhen serving Hong
Kong manufacturers in the Pearl River Delta.

With close to 400 consulting and technical professionals,
HKPC and its subsidiaries provide a multitude of
services in technology transfer, consultancy, training and
other support services in the areas of manufacturing
technology, information technology, environmental
technology and management systems. These services
are designed to help industry move successfully up the
value chain.
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We use “Small” as the theme of this year's annual report not only because
many of the new initiatives launched during the year were devised to
address the needs of small enterprises, but also to highlight the beauty
of “smallness” as a critical factor for riding out the tough times.
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In this report, you will withess how enterprises act “small” by becoming more
agile, creative, sustainable, and delivering quality services that satisfy the
diverse needs of the customers.

Despite their small scale, the collective power of small enterprises cannot
A\ (PETHBUDEFIRR T ZE « HBMIFIEA

be underestimated. Local small and medium enterprises (SMEs) represent g -
about 98% of Hong Kong companies. Their business might be small but Local SMEs will benefit from the BUD Fund fo boost
their impact is huge. To this end, we set the focus of our industry support their business development on the Mainiand.

e 4£ENB HKPC



SME One offers information
on various support

and funding schemes,
solutions for enhancing
operation efficiency and
competitiveness.
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Message from the Chairman

strategy firmly on the needs of Hong Kong's SMEs.
Although small businesses possess certain unique
competitive edges, undercapitalization is the most
common cause of small-business failure and the
biggest hindrance to their further development.

Despite the variety of business support and
funding schemes available in the market, local
SMEs very often find it difficult in identifying
schemes that fit their needs best. To provide
comprehensive support to SMEs, HKPC has

set up a new one-stop support centre, SME

One, to offer information on various support
and funding schemes, solutions for enhancing
operation efficiency and competitiveness, as
well as hand-holding advisory services. Since its
commencement of service in July 2012, SME One

was warmly received by local SMEs.

In the past year, the Government has launched a
$1 billion dedicated fund on Branding, Upgrading
and Domestic Sales (the BUD Fund). HKPC was

appointed as the secretariat to assist with
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£ENB HKPC

the implementation of the Enterprise Support
Programme. Local SMEs in particular will benefit
from the scheme with the support and resources
in need to boost their business development

on the Mainland. The scheme is gathering
momentum with solid progress being made in the

application.

Both the SME One and the BUD scheme shed light
on the crucial and catalytic role played by HKPC in
the creation and implementation of service platforms
to support SMEs and the industry at large.

The government-funded five-year Cleaner
Production Partnership Programme is another
typical example to demonstrate this unique role
of HKPC.

HKPC has extensive expertise and experience in
industrial pollution prevention, cleaner production
and energy efficiency which are essential to support

HKPC continues to implement the
Government's Cleaner Production
Partnership Programme and provides
green manufacturing support to the
industry.



Exchange ideas with the
industry to understand their
needs for developing timely and
suitable services.
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Message from the Chairman

the operation of the programme. In addition, banking
on its impartiality, HKPC has built up a strong network,
mutual trust and partnership with the manufacturing
sector and the Mainland authorities. The programme
also involves partnership with environmental
technology services providers in delivering support to
a large number of targeted factories.

In the light of the positive feedbacks from the
industry, we are appointed by the Government to
implement the extension programme for two years
starting from April 2013.

To promote innovation and technology development
in Hong Kong and to capture opportunities in the
emerging markets of automotive parts, the Hong
Kong Automotive Parts and Accessory Systems (APAS)
R&D Centre was established by the Government in
2006, and hosted by HKPC since its inception.
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£ENB HKPC

Over the past few years, HKPC has been closely
collaborating with APAS in conducting market-led
R&D programmes as well as the commercialization
of R&D results. More importantly, SMEs also got
their much needed resources to develop automotive
parts, and through which to lift their business model
to a higher value-added level.

To facilitate greater synergy and further promote the
commercialization of R&D results, APAS merged with
HKPC from 1 November 2012. Pooling its resources
on R&D projects and technology matters, APAS will
continue to bring more benefits to the industry.

HKPC, as a knowledge-based organization, has
been leveraging and transferring its professional
know-how to the industries through consultancy,
training services and various support initiatives
to assist their development. To fulfill its mission,
HKPC has been implementing a comprehensive
knowledge management strategy to generate
values for its stakeholders.

HKPC is committed to achieving and
maintaining the highest standards
of corporate governance.



HKPC is named the winner of the
Asian MAKE Award 2012.
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Message from the Chairman

We are honoured for being named the Top Winner
at the Hong Kong Most Admired Knowledge
Enterprise (MAKE) Award 2012 and winner of the
Asian MAKE Award 2012. We would continue to
deliver knowledge-based services and solutions
to help more local businesses achieve enhanced
competitiveness through enterprise innovation.

In the area of corporate governance, HKPC

is committed to achieving and maintaining

the highest standards of openness, probity,
accountability and fair play. During the year, we
have further strengthened our internal audit and risk
management structure and have introduced a new
whistle-blowing policy to enhance the accountability
of our operations.

“Small is big” — when the people of an organization
think big, work smart and deliver great services.
Like small restaurant owners who greet a customer
personally and know his or her liking, HKPC
consultants also provide dedicated services tailored
to the needs of enterprises big and small.

Lastly, | sincerely extend my gratitude to all Members
and staff of the Council for their continuous support,
commitment and dedicated efforts in serving the
industry.

Clement Chen, SBS, JP
Chairman
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Council Membership and Standing Committees

BESHEEES
Staffing Committee

X% Chairman

A/)\E, ses, Jp Dr Elizabeth Shing Shiu-ching, Bes, Jp

ZEEME Members

MisE Miss Lam Kam-yi
2 Mr Leung Yam-shing
IS, P Mr Andrew Mak Yip-shing, s
5ED Prof Helen Meng Mei-ling
PESREALE, Jp Mrs Katherine Ngan Ng Yu-ying, Jp
HoBRER, mH Mr Sin Kai-ming, mH
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=[=23% Mr Frank Tsang
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The Staffing Committee approves the appointment of General
Managers. The Committee monitors the staffing situation
and recommends changes to the Council where appropriate.
It advises the Council on human resources development
policies. The Committee also monitors HKPC's general terms
and conditions of service, to ensure that these are adequate
to recruit and retain competent staff, and recommends
changes to the Council where necessary. The Committee
provides a channel between the Council and staff for the
communication of grievances about general terms and
conditions of service, in situations where they cannot be
resolved by consultation.

£ENB HKPC
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Business Development Committee

%/ Chairman
B§E{, ses,)p  Mr Clement Chen Cheng-jen, sBs, Jp
ZEEME Members

E[STHR, mH, P
SIREE, BBs, MH, P Mr Jimmy Kwok Chun-wah, 8BS, MH, Jp

TEX

Ir Daniel Cheng Man-chung, mH, JP

Dr Delman Lee

RPER Mr Leung Kwong-chuen

FEREAZL, p Mrs Katherine Ngan Ng Yu-ying, P
S IR Dr Jack Yeung Chung-kit

=135 Mr Frank Tsang

EEFEEE, mH, P Mrs Agnes Mak Tang Pik-yee, MH, Jp
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The Business Development Committee reviews the
business activities of HKPC, considers substantial
changes to the HKPC's Services Audit Statement, explores
new business opportunities, and advises the Council

on the business development of HKPC in relation to
HKPC's role in the changing industrial environment. The
Committee also monitors the performance of HKPC's
subsidiary companies.
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Finance Committee

£ & Chairman
RS8R, mH Mr Victor Ng Chi-keung, mH
ZEEME Members
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Mr Clement Chen Cheng-jen, sBs, Jp
Dr David Ng Tai-chiu

Dr Dennis Ng Wang-pun, 8BS, MH
Mrs Helen Chan, Jp
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The Finance Committee monitors the financial performance
of HKPC and ensures that funds made available are properly
accounted for. The Committee approves changes to HKPC's
policies and practices relating to procurement, building
management, fixed asset management and charging levels
of HKPC's services. The Committee recommends HKPC's
three-year strategic plan, three-year forecast, an annual
programme and estimates and the transfer of funds between
major heads of expenditure, for consideration by the Council.
The Committee also advises the Council on matters relating to
HKPC's financial policies and matters that have a significant
financial impact on HKPC.
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Audit Committee

*/& Chairman

BREM Mr Albert Au Siu-cheung

ZEE N E Members

SBIRZE, 8BS, MH, )P Mr Jimmy Kwok Chun-wah, 8BS, MH, JP
IR, P Mr Andrew Mak Yip-shing, s

R Dr David Ng Tai-chiu

%/)\&, ses, Jp Dr Elizabeth Shing Shiu-ching, Bgs, Jp
TP, p Miss Janet Wong Wing-chen, Jp
ZSTREEE, mH, P Mrs Agnes Mak Tang Pik-yee, MH, Jp
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The Audit Committee is established to monitor and make
recommendations to enhance HKPC's healthy corporate
governance in financial reporting, risk management, internal
control, appointment and performance of the external auditor,
and compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The
Committee is authorized by the Council to investigate any
activity and resolve any disagreement within its scope of
duties. Staff members can directly report to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee on cases of malpractice or irregularities.
The Committee is underpinned by an Internal Audit and Risk
Management Office which reports functionally to the Audit
Committee and administratively to the Executive Director. The
Office is committed to assist the Audit Committee to safeguard
and promote the healthy corporate governance of the HKPC.

HZE 2013935318 As at 31 March 2013
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INEE KRR
Small Business
Big Future
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It is estimated that half of the world's oxygen is produced by
marine phytoplankton through photosynthesis. According to NASA,
this "biological carbon pump" transfers about 10 gigatonnes of
carbon from the atmosphere to the deep ocean each year. Even
the smallest change in the population of phytoplankton may
endanger the sustainability of living things on earth.

O BEEENEEE Likewise, the continuous prosperity of the Hong

2 BRI ENRD/NEEERES Kong economy hinges on the competitiveness of
F o B/ DIFERSEIK our small and medium enterprises (SMEs) which
TRV BHFDIEE A A ERREYI have been hard hit by the global financial crisis and
ESpglca skyrocketing operating costs in recent years.

FIDASRBRENIEE TR - BiF - Guided by the four-pronged strategy of scaling
EBEIESEYS - RO/ up platforms, creating value for SMEs, sharpening
AEEE  R{tBINBE I K3 core competencies and developing strategic
BRI EENSEER partnership, HKPC continues to step up its support
FAEESEELEHI2D/)\BEY  to Hong Kong enterprises, especially SMEs, to

@ £ENB HKPC
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HKPC convenes various HK-INC
consultation sessions to gauge

the views of industry on issues of
relevance to their development.
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The Year in Review by the Executive Director

capture opportunities in the emerging markets and
high value-adding industry sectors for sustainable

business growth.

Scaling Up Platforms

Given the sheer number of SMEs in Hong Kong,

it is quite impossible for a single organization to
cover all their diversified needs. By building industry
support platforms, HKPC provides a portal to pool
the resources of various governments and industry
support organizations to help a specific industry
sector and a much larger number of enterprises to

change and upgrade their business model.

Since its launch in 2008, the TURN (acronym for
Transform, Upgrade and Relocate for a New horizon)
platform, spearheaded by HKPC, was replicated

in key industrial towns and cities in the Pearl River
Delta (PRD) region to provide funding and technical
support to more manufacturers aspiring fo upgrade

their business model.
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Banking on HKPC's professional advice to upgrade
their operations, to date, over 190 enterprises from
plastics, metal, electronics, clothing, printing and toy
industries have participated in these programmes,
yielding productivity increase as high as 60%. During
the past year, iTURN — an online self-assessment
system was launched to provide enterprises with
convenient tools to review their strengths and
weaknesses at an early stage before charting their

roadmap for business transformation.

For the past five years, the Cleaner Production
Partnership Programme, implemented by HKPC, has
successfully assisted Hong Kong-owned factories
in the PRD region to improve energy efficiency and
reduce pollution. The yearly reduction of carbon
dioxide is equivalent to planting 28 million trees,
more than enough to cover four times the areas of
the Hong Kong Island! With positive feedback from
the industry, an additional funding of $50 million
was earmarked for extending the programme to
2015, as well as expanding it to cover the entire
Guangdong Province.

Introduce the CarbonSmart
programme with the industry to
encourage local enterprises to
reduce their carbon footprint.
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The Watch Movement Components and
Subassemblies Testing Laboratory helps
local watch companies enter the high
value mechanical watch market.

RE— T ERI RIS BRI
I ZFIBR IE5RR2012
FIRED [BHFRBBERARIK
5t&l - SERHIBHEIEE!
BT —F  BAITZEI
ESER

RBENAHLE B ZERE A AT
BB YRR E S N0(E
BAREB LIRS KRB
gliRE - EEBREBUT [P/
TEBREZIERES | BREDR
FEREHT - RUEBSE 8
BRERPIL -

[BERPIL ] REBEENBSE
XA ENNERALEBIRIE
A - BRENAERERD
KoERNBRESEZENE -
EXRTRSIMFTNLEBINE
o - BEERSNSSIBERN

=0

JFEOD °

SENBE THNEBEEAERR
SWHBFPILVNEHMIS—E
SEWS  RAMIBHEZFEAN
OMBEREHEE L

B2/

The Year in Review by the Executive Director

To further encourage local enterprises to reduce
their carbon footprint, HKPC and industry partners
infroduced the CarbonSmart programme in March
2012. This 30-month Programme has completed
its first year of implementation and has been well

received by various business sectors.

To assist the local plastics industry to enhance the
added value of its products by using novel materials,
HKPC, the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and
Vocational Training Council jointly established the
first Plastic Materials Resources Centre (PMRC) with
the funding support of the SME Development Fund

and industry partners.

PMRC features a HKPC-developed knowledge-
based plastic materials application system, sample
displays and reference database of popular

plastic materials and their applications. Industry
practitioners can conveniently find information on
plastic materials for the development of high valued-

added products such as medical devices.

Another much acclaimed industry support platform
under HKPC - the Hong Kong Computer Emergency
Response Team Coordination Centre (HKCERT),
continues to live up to its fame as the local

information security watchdog.
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The new HKCERT Centre steps up its
support with new incident response
services for smartphone and mobile
device users.

Tasked with creating a safer cyberspace for local
businesses and Internet users, HKCERT has moved to
a new office in April 2012, which is about thrice the
size of the previous establishment. Complete with

a host of new functions and equipment, the new
Centre has stepped up its support with new incident
response services for smartphone and mobile device
users to cope with the growing popularity in these
gadgets. Apart from conducting malware and intrusion
analysis, the Centre also keeps on tracking abnormal
activities on the Internet so as to identify information
security trends in Hong Kong for prompt and effective

mitigation of potential threats.

Creating Value for SMEs

In order to help local SMEs get their much needed
information on government funding support
programmes, the latest technology development,
business development support, and financial
management including credit and loan all under one
roof, HKPC goes the extra mile and set up SME One.
As an integrated hub of support to SMEs, SME One
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Establish the SME One to help

local SMEs get their much needed
information on government funding
support programmes under one roof.
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The Year in Review by the Executive Director

was warmly received with more than 10,000 visitors
and 2,400 enquiries since operation commenced in
July 2012.

In addition to SME One’s support services, HKPC
collaborated with Standard Chartered Hong Kong

to launch the Standard Chartered Hong Kong SME
Leading Business Index in July 2012. Serving as an
economic barometer on SMEs’ outlook on business
sales, profits, investments, employment, and impact
of global economic change for the next quarter, the
survey gauges the views of more than 800 local
SMEs. Independently conducted by HKPC, this forward
looking survey offers a useful reference for SMEs and

the community in making strategic planning.

For local SMEs eyeing on opportunities on the
Mainland, they need to cross different hurdles such
as the high marketing cost, insufficient distribution

channels and the lack of a renowned brand.
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Collaborate with Standard Chartered
Hong Kong to launch the Standard
Chartered Hong Kong SME Leading
Business Index fo measure local
SMEs’ outlook on business sales and
impact of global economic change
for the next quarter.

In view of this, supported by the SME Development
Fund, Hong Kong Auto Parts Industry Association
and HKPC joined hands to promote the capabilities
of Hong Kong automotive parts manufacturers in
the Mainland automotive aftermarket. Featuring an
exhibition pavilion in the International Automobile
Accessory Plaza in Guangzhou and a series of
advertising campaigns, the project has successfully
facilitated business exchange between the Hong
Kong auto parts industry and Mainland buyers in
the aftermarket.

Sharpening Core Competencies
Throughout its history, HKPC has been a pioneer
in manufacturing technology and business
management in many sectors. HKPC continues to
invest in new facilities to enhance its competencies
to upgrade the service levels and address the

diversified needs of our industry.



QFQEZL :

BBt
The Intelligent Manufacturing (i-mfg)
Technology Demonstration Centre
will assist the industry to adopt
Flexible Manufacturing Technology
(FMT) and process automation.
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The Year in Review by the Executive Director

To promote flexible and cost-effective production
management, we are gearing up to establish the

first Intelligent Manufacturing (i-mfg) Technology
Demonstration Centre in Hong Kong. With support from
the Innovation and Technology Fund (ITF), the Centre
will assist the industry to adopt Flexible Manufacturing
Technology (FMT) and process automation pending
service commencement in July 2013.

Through this Centre, HKPC aims to raise the level
of automation and productivity of the local mould
and die and other industries. With the mould and
die industry as pilot, the Centre uses an advanced
mould automation software and management
system to connect the related facilities in a flexible
production layout to systematically enhance the
workflow.

Also funded by the ITF, HKPC initiated the
establishment of a Watch Movement Components
and Subassemblies Testing Laboratory to design
and acquire the specific testing instruments and
machines for ascertaining the quality of the precision
components in mechanical watch movement.
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The laboratory will provide testing services and
product development support to help local watch
companies enter the high value mechanical watch
market with their own movements.

Developing Strategic Partnership

For the past 45 years, HKPC's solid and extensive
industry network has created business opportunities
for the manufacturing and business communities. The
Hong Kong Industry Network Clusters (HK-INC) is one
of our important channels to gauge our stakeholders’
knowledge in order to devise our services direction
and level. During the year, consultation forums on
food, toys and automotive parts industries, and SME

support strategies were held.

To foster technology collaboration and facilitate
Hong Kong industry to enter the high value-
adding light metal sector, HKPC is cooperating
with the National Engineering Research Center for
Magnesium Alloys (CCMg) to set up an Engineering
Research Center for Light Metals in Hong Kong.

§5ff%u ?&é/mﬂazf‘é BEEES
BV BT

Cooperate with the National
Engineering Research Center for
Magnesium Alloys to set up an
Engineering Research Center for Light
Metals in Hong Kong to facilitate
Hong Kong industry to enter the high
value-adding light metal sector.
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Implement the Happy Organization
Label Scheme to promote the concept
of corporate social responsibility to
Hong Kong enterprises.
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The Year in Review by the Executive Director

Through the new Center, HKPC and CCMg will
collaborate in the areas of light metal technology
development and exchange, promotion of research
results, technology transfer and commercialization,

as well as technical support services. The alliance
between research institutions and industries on both
sides will enhance the overall competitiveness of the
light metal industries in Hong Kong and the Mainland.

In Hong Kong, awareness of software quality and the
adoption of disciplined software test methodologies is
still at an early stage. Few organizations adopt good
software testing practices, especially those who do not
possess the know-how or cannot afford the investment.
HKPC is collaborating with Zhuhai Southern Software
Testing Center to establish the Hong Kong Software
Testing and Cerfification Centre to promote and research
on software testing methodologies, technologies and
use of software testing tools to enhance productivity and
quality of software testing.
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The "HKPC Volunteers”, cooperates
with a social services organization to
arrange a meaningful youth induction
programme on Hong Kong industry
for 70 secondary students.

Small but Great

During the year, HKPC actively promoted the
concept of corporate social responsibility to Hong
Kong enterprises through the implementation of

the Hong Kong Corporate Citizenship Program and
the Happy Organization Label Scheme. As a caring
organization, we also support our staff to participate

in community service.

Our voluntary group, the "HKPC Volunteers”,
cooperated with a social services organization to
arrange a meaningful youth induction programme
on Hong Kong industry for 70 secondary students.
Over 40 staff volunteers from HKPC participated in
the programme which comprised company visits

and personal sharing by our senior management.
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The Year in Review by the Executive Director

It is encouraging to witness the teenagers being
energized with a positive attitude towards their
academic and career pursuit after joining the

programme.

The past year was yet another fruitful year marked
with many new milestones in our history of serving
the industry. | would like to convey my heartfelt
thanks to all staff members for their dedication and
valuable efforts which make all these initiatives a

remarkable success.

Mother Teresa of Calcutta once said, “We cannot
all do great things, but we can do small things with
great love.” Sincerely, we will continue to serve all
Hong Kong enterprises large and small with a big

heart.

Agnes Mak, MH, JP

Executive Director
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Year in

EBBHRELSHHREPIVERFBET
ENREIBEM AR - ERRFHE -
Opening of the new Hong Kong Computer
Emergency Response Team Coordination
Centre (HKCERT).

L

20
12

RO [EEDEE] -
EIEERDBAEENTTIE
EBEFEHEOR -
Unveiled the brand new HKPC
Gallery to present HKPC's
support for enterprises.

|

Bl [BERNHESSEFTE
2012 - ATHIREIR ) RERA -
Organized the Hong Kong
Software Quality Assurance
(HKSQA) Conference 2012 with the
theme of “Managing with Facts”.

-

B [HKPCEERE ] - RSYWT
BREDRT — R IEEZ A ALY
AIDER L - EEXFEZ -

Organized the HK-INC consultation
session to explore strategies to
help next-generation entrepreneurs
sustain their business success and
enhance their competitiveness.

e0ccc0000c00000000000000

RS —B+ET
B [EERE - FRELR
HEAHHEFEES ] -

SENBER [ESE
St MER -

The HKSARG launched a $1
billion “Dedicated Fund on
Branding, Upgrading and
Domestic Sales” (the BUD
Fund). HKPC acts as the
secretariat for the Enterprise
Support Programme.

e




MEBRARLIGHETEMDE
BB [EB8EETIFREEH ] -
Announced Hong Kong's first study
on the “Hong Kong Happiness-at-
work Index” jointly with the Promoting
Happiness Index Foundation.

FEHY
THE YEAR IN PICTURES

29 [HKPCEEREE ) 3
ERCARE - WREY
PINERIEERDS -
Convened the HK-INC

to gauge the views of
industry on the strategies
to support SMEs.

SREMPERESER

[ &N A man Rl
ANE#2012 ] ZRlHT
EARIE -

Senior Consultant Jessica Nan

O

.
BRI [HKPCEEREE | - #R5Y
[+ BECIRRES
KBk ey o

Organized the HK-INC to
explore the challenges

and opportunities of green
manufacturing under the

12th Five-Year Plan.

was awarded the Outstanding
ICT Achiever Awards 2012
(Innovation Category) .

Bl EEES] P\ EBES
2012 » REPHFTRMHOHSH -
Organized the Wise Business SME
Summit 2012 to explore rising
opportunities in emerging markets.

SME One [/\E—558 |
BNIRTS - RO/ EIEH
SIEEREISTEFFE -
SME One commenced
operation, providing
comprehensive
information on funding
schemes in Hong Kong
and the PRD region.
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|

SN =SS S TS
% - BIRERBIRIERSRE
Signed collaboration agreement with
the Shenzhen authority to promote
development of the services sector in
Qianhai.
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WEEBO/N\AUCEBESSRES Conducted the Standard Chartered
RN E B SIEHT (D Hong Kong SME Leading Business
RAETS | T/EstEl - Index with Standard Chartered Bank
Co-organized the “New Media (Hong Kong] Limited. H

o

Marketing for PRC Domestic Sales”
project with the Hong Kong Small
and Medium Enterprises Association
and Hong Kong Wireless Technology
Industry Association.

MEBOD/NEEEEFEIRHRS
SIERR (PBERNHEEE LS -
ERRF)

Compiled the “China Domestic
Sales Guidebook - East China”

E [BRRZHIZ2012) - MU
[EIRERBRENRE | RE

Organized the Information Security

with the Hong Kong Association of Showcase 2012 with the theme
International Co-operation of Small of “Security in Cloud and Mobile
& Medium Enterprises (ISME). Devices”.

o
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Set up the Plastic Materials
Resources Centre with the Federation
of Hong Kong Industries (FHKI) and
Vocational Training Council (VTC).

|

MEEBHMRLBESSIFHET [£— BRI
ECERIESE ) - BAFESHELAIRIEE
B o

Jointly launched the “1st Animation Start-ups
Support Program” with the Hong Kong Digital
Entertainment Association to nurture and
promote aspiring animation start-ups.

HEH [ITURNTEES RIS
WEEE] - BEETRIEE
IRARDAT EF+ B 2RHES -
Launched the iTURN - free
online self-assessment tool
for enterprises to objectively
assess and identify their
operation problems.

FEHY
THE YEAR IN PICTURES

KEtHEYN [E88FBIBR R

W) A0 TS IRENKRBRIZAI] -
T CE—FEBIEER] Y
[4SRG T ]eR5T | BRI EER
HKPC designed Automatic Engine
|dlestop and Supplementary Air
Conditioning System (ISAC System)
and Ozone Treatment System for
Denim Wear have won awards in
the Machinery and Machine Tools
Design Category in 2012 Hong Kong
Awards for Industries.
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BEBPERRIRS
HEEEH [BIIRRE

K gs#2012] -

Jointly organized the
“International Eyewear Fashion
Symposium 2012” with the Hong
Kong Optical Manufacturers
Association (HKOMA).

MEBERWERSOM [BEBNEXIRREE
5tEl ) REEH2BENZLIRRHMAE -
Jointly launched the Quality Restaurant
Environmental Management Scheme with the
Hong Kong Federation of Restaurants & Related
Trades. 23 F&B traders were honoured as the first
batch of accredited merchants.
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DF20126F80NF [(BFEE
DN ErafEEEEl -
Announced the 4th quarter

of 2012 Standard Chartered
Hong Kong SME Leading
Business Index.

/

BHAFENSETEVZM -
The Automotive Parts and
Accessory Systems R&D Centre
(APAS) was merged with HKPC
as one of its divisions.

@ 4£ENB HKPC

IR [RERR =FE2012 ]
BRI [EENREE -

DA TRIFTRIE: o Z21R—iE ]
REBE-

Staged a HKPC Pavilion
under the theme of
“Technology and Living” at

HEEAFERR RO InnoCarnival 2012.
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SENBELFHOREFR -
RGEAXDEMIIAR - BAE
TEEXRREEBEVHSIE
1B - BAIFTERE -

HKPC unveiled a new brand
identity to mark an important
milestone of serving local
businesses through rain or shine.

FENDEE DM
BRZHEFE
AR -

HKPC won the 2012 Asian
Most Admired Knowledge

HKCERTER{TZ BB
RLBHES - M [ERBHRS
BUBIE LI EE ) RERE »

HKCERT conducted a territory-wide
drill to tackle hackfivist attacks.

Ent t A A
chierprises Awdrd.

229 [HKPCERBE ] - HREIFAA
FERKREARRLE -

Organized the HK-INC to
explore wider use of advanced
technologies in food safety.
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FENBEREBEMFREEEREHX
B (HKMA) REFRRPEE [BF
EEEDBRER] -

HKPC Annual Report has won the
Citation for Corporate Governance
Disclosure Award for the second
consecutive year in the Best Annual
Report Awards organized by the Hong
Kong Management Association (HKMA).

B [EhRZsEE2012]) - B
[ES#ER e CIE ) RERE -
Organized the Information
Security Summit 2012 under the
theme of “BYOD and Mobility -
Balancing Corporate Security and
End-User Needs”.

fgt @t/ N\ EUPR g BR HE
(BBPNEEERIRSZE
fEFREM) -

Jointly compiled the
“Hong Kong SME Cloud
Solution Guidebook” with
the SME Global Alliance.

MERES TR TIERMARDINES
SIERE - M1 [ESE TIERMFEDIL] -
Joined hands with the National Engineering
Research Center for Magnesium Alloys (CCMg) to
set up the Engineering Research Center for Light
Metals in Hong Kong.

HREETERSRK—PTERSTEMNSH

[EB TR RE | 572 -

Organized a seminar on business upgrading, brand building
and domestic sales in Guangzhou jointly with the Federation
of Hong Kong Industries and the PRD Council.
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mEBTRMSSLNES
DBSH [BBEIRENE
BTEE&E2012]  LATH
FRRIETRI AR E—H T
SERRENE) RERE -
Co-organized the Hong Kong
Biomedical Engineering International Conference 2012 with the
Biomedical Division of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.

R N XN

SME One [N E—158 ] [EXNRR -
RIPNEREETTNIRTS -

SME One officially opened, providing
comprehensive support to local SMEs.

29 [HKPCERE | - REIBBIEEN

B9 [HKPCERE | - REPAE RRERIDME °
SR - Organized the HK-INC to exchange views with
Organized the HK-INC to explore toys industry on business opportunities.

road ahead for auto parts industry.

1000000000000 0000000000000000000000

MEFBIRFRLIFHETSE -
W TRINIIER ) #ESTE -
Launched the "Happy
Organization Label Scheme”
jointly with the Promoting
Happiness Index Foundation.

20
13

N2013FE—F [BHES

B —— DR EEER -
Announced the 1st quarter of

o 2013 Standard Chartered Hong

Kong SME Leading Business
BB TETRERDVEBEONSERS - .
HEHES - oML EBRAMIHES -
Signed collaboration agreement with the Metal
Industries Research & Development Centre to
promote HK and Taiwan metal technology research
and development.

@ 4£ENB HKPC
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BB MBS AIDINGE - HEHE

M RIE RSRAEARFE &R -

Cooperated with the Zhuhai Southern Software Testing
Center to establish a third-party professional software
and network testing platform.

B [E—BEBREDTEFEARE | BRIE - KI5
EEINEBRCEMTSEFRRBELNEERZTK -
Organized the 3rd Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate
Citizenship Awards Presentation Ceremony to recognize
companies and corporate volunteer teams with outstanding
achievements in the implementation and promotion of

corporate social responsibility.

BT—F—E [DABEBMRLZSHHHER ] (APCERT)
BEMES - ABEB TH [EBEMREZEHHADI
(HKCERT) BE®BEEE - WESZHE -

The Asia Pacific Computer Emergency Response Team (APCERT)
conducted its annual drill. HKCERT, managed by HKPC took the —_—
lead in organizing the drill and served as an exercise controller.

SR [ 2514/8TBS DigiCon6 KE | HEEB
MRERE - KREANOHBRLABA
Organized the 14th TBS DigiCon6 Awards:
HK Region certificate presentation

mend the achievements
of HK digital creative talents.

B [E\BEBAY

FRREE | R MEBRRNRZSSIEEM

g - SEFHEL E—B [EBEFREF A KE] -

[BERS#CIE « /S M) AR A8 - Co-organized the 3rd Hong Kong International
Organized the 6th Mobile Film Production Contest Award Mobile Film Awards (HKIMFA) with the Hong Kong
Presentation Ceremony to recognize local outstanding Wireless Technology Industry Association (WTIA).
productions
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Small and medium enterprises (SMEs) have been
the growth engine of many economies around the
globe. However, the business development of SMEs
is often obstructed by lack of funding and other

technical resources.

One-stop to Growth

In line with HKPC's pledge to “go the extra mile” for
businesses, SME One was established in the year
by HKPC to offer comprehensive support for SMEs.
It provides information on the SME support schemes
of Hong Kong and Mainland governments as well
as various technology and management solutions.
Most importantly, SME One offers “hand-holding”
guide to SMEs to identify and apply for support

schemes that best fit their needs.

SME One was warmly received by local SMEs,
receiving 10,495 visitors and 2,425 enquiries since

operation commenced in July 2012.

SME One [/ \iE—i58 ] B [FEF] B
o BEIPNEBHHBE N EFEHIZ
EAEL)5E -

SME One offers "hand-holding” guide to

SMEs to identify and apply for support
schemes that best fit their needs.

BBRKR=ABNIIE%E<
R 218 0P/ \ES2EAD
EH)5tE -

32 SME support and funding
schemes are offered by Hong
Kong and PRD governments
and business support bodies.
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The Government has launched the $1
billion Dedicated Fund on Branding,
Upgrading and Domestic Sales (the BUD
Fundl.
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BUDEIEE® [{EXZIR5El] ERE
BUD (ESP) - Progress Summary

o BEENZHVBRFIIENE
BB

* BREB)EERAV3,100887T

* BFEKEERE TIIABDIR20A

K040 26.2%

e Average amount of grants per
approved application: $400,000

e Total amount of funding approved: $31
million

e Average number of full-time staff of
applicant enterprises: below 20

9.2%

28.7%
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SMEs Lead the Way

Budding Success

The Government has launched the $1 billion Dedicated
Fund on Branding, Upgrading and Domestic Sales
(the BUD Fund) which aimed at assisting Hong Kong
enterprises and non-profit-distributing organizations
to undertake projects to develop brands, upgrade and
restructure business operations and promote sales in
the Mainland market.

HKPC has been appointed by the Government to be
the secretariat of the Enterprise Support Programme
(ESP) of the BUD Fund. Since the fund was introduced
in June 2012, HKPC has processed the first three
batches totalling 519 applications under the ESP.

SMEs can also get funding and technical support
offered by the transformation and upgrading (TURN)
scheme operated by HKPC in collaboration with PRD
municipal governments. To date, over 190 enterprises
from plastics, metal, electronics, clothing, printing and
toy industries have participated in the programme,
yielding productivity gain as high as 60%. HKPC

also launched the iTURN online self-assessment
system to help enterprises review their strengths and
weaknesses at an early stage.

R+ ARERBRAHETHS
Branding+Upgrading+Domestic Sales
® =G Branding
FHR#ER Upgrading
BREAEETH S Domestic Sales
® FEEIF+FHRET
Branding+Upgrading
® FEGIR+IDRAHETHS
Branding+Domestic Sales
FRER+IBRAHEDES

Upgrading+Domestic Sales

15.1%

3.2%
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FHREED
Turn Up Productivity
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Through the Dongguan TURN programme, a local printing company has undergone a
production performance assessment by HKPC's expert team. The stability of the machines
in the printing and binding processes was greatly improved following our recommendation
of a Total Productive Maintenance (TPM) approach. The efficiency of the printing and binding
machines has been increased by 30% and adjustment time reduced by 60%.
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Mapping Business Landscape

To assist the public and SMEs to get an insight into
the forthcoming business climate, with sponsorship
from Standard Chartered Hong Kong, HKPC
launched the Standard Chartered Hong Kong SME
Leading Business Index during the year. Quarterly
surveys will be conducted with over 800 local SMEs
in eight industry sectors to track their business

senfiment and market outlook.

Since the launch of the Index in July 2012, HKPC has
conducted four surveys, providing a useful channel
for various stakeholders in the business community
to understand SMEs’ key challenges and the impacts
of changing market situation and latest Government

policies.

In view of the unstable economy of the US and
European markets, the local watch and clock
industry saw threats and difficulties in the future
development of the trade. Thus, supported by the
SME Development Fund, HKPC collaborated with the
Federation of Hong Kong Watch Trades &

Through iTURN online self-assessment
system, enterprises can review their
strengths and weaknesses at an early
stage.
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The Standard Chartered
Hong Kong SME Leading
Business Index helps the

public and SMEs get an

insight into the forthcoming
business climate.
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SMEs Lead the Way

Industries Limited (FHKWTI) to launch a new
18-month programme to develop a road map for the
industry with respect to brand building, technology
upgrading and new market development.

Hong Kong SMEs are often hindered from entering
the Mainland market by high marketing cost,
insufficient distribution channels as well as the lack
of renowned brand.

In view of this, Hong Kong Auto Parts Industry
Association and HKPC jointly launched a project to
establish channels for Hong Kong automotive parts
manufacturers to display and promote their capabilities
in the Mainland’s automotive aftermarket by setting up
a “Hong Kong Pavilion” of auto parts in the International
Automobile Accessory Plaza in Guangzhou.

An advertising campaign under the theme of
“Original Products by Hong Kong” was launched
in May 2012 to promote Hong Kong auto parts on
renowned aftermarket magazines, directories and

internet search engines. The project has paved way
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for Hong Kong auto parts manufacturers to establish
business network with the Mainland aftermarket

buyers for future cooperation.

Effective use of ICT applications can lower the
business entry barriers for SMEs. Cloud computing
and smartphone are the two most promising
areas which will enable SMEs to lower their IT
investment cost and facilitate their business
development.

To explore ways to support SMEs in the adoption

of cloud computing services, HKPC and the Office
of the Government Chief Information Officer
conducted an industry consultation to understand
the requirements and concerns of SMEs and service
providers on the establishment of a commercial
cloud platform in Hong Kong.

As indicated in user surveys, one of the key
obstacles to SMEs’ adoption of cloud solutions

is the lack of awareness of available cloud
solutions and the knowhow to choose the right
one. Supported by the SME Development Fund, the

Actively promoting Cloud computing
and smartphone applications fo help
SMEs lower their IT investment cost and
facilitate their business development.

HKPC collaborates with trade
associations to provide channels
for Hong Kong automotive parts
manufacturers to establish
business network with the
Mainland aftermarket buyers.
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“Hong Kong SME Cloud

Solution Guidebook”
provides useful tips for
SMEs in choosing cloud
solutions.
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SME Global Alliance and HKPC jointly launched
an initiative to assist local SMEs in the selection
and adoption of cloud services for savings in IT
investment and enhancement of operation.

One of the major deliverables was the "Hong Kong
SME Cloud Solution Guidebook”. On top of useful tips
for SMEs in choosing cloud solutions, the Guidebook
also introduces 24 cloud solutions selected by HKPC
experts.

Smartphone apps provide an innovative channel for
SMEs in the retail and catering sectors to promote and
market their services. To lower the entry barrier for SMEs
in the target sectors to adopt smartphone apps, HKPC
collaborate with the Hong Kong Wireless Technology
Industry Association (WTIA) to launch a smartphone
apps adoption campaign for SMEs to provide expert
advice on affordable and effective adoption of
smartphone apps. The campaign also included training
workshops and a business matching programme,
which were attended by over 1,000 participants.
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As Charles Darwin once wrote, honeycomb is “absolutely perfect in‘economizing labour and wax.” The
hexagonal structure of honeycomb allows minimum material to' make a light but strong structure. Man-made

honeycomb structures are now widely used in high performance applications such as rockets and aircrafts.
Who could imagine that such engineering feats are inspired by these small creatures? With innovative ideas,
even a small enterprise can disrupt the market and change the world.




[ JoJo)eoXoXeoXe;

BlIFTER AR
[l %elilelaand Enhancement

Bl EL AR
Innovation and
Enhancement

[ERFIERRNBANTH TIEL - BFECRTEEND]  REBFIE
RIS &3 AN BBV LA - Rl R IR - SERFEeEEIRFIER
A EmEEE - |

“If we apply knowledge to tasks we already know how to do, we call it
‘productivity’. If we apply knowledge to tasks that are new and different we
call it “innovation’. Only knowledge allows us to achieve these two goals.”

SERBELBI A Peter In essence, this remark by management guru
DruckenBy—)E - IBEMEES  Peter Drucker aptly summarizes HKPC's mission
SHEENBWEGDRIE - and work.

BT Knowledge Enterprise

AMAITIINVED - 2I2FRIEAIE  Drucker also said that the key to improving the
THEED  INVBEMPIEEE  productivity of the knowledge worker is to allow
HalEr « 2B R EDIZEE them the freedom to innovate, learn and grow.

LENBEE [EERIZHSH
BEEAR | RSREA -
HKPC is named the Top Winner
at the Hong Kong Most Admired
Knowledge Enterprise (MAKE)
Award 2012.



HKPC offers intellectual
capital management
consultancy services to
enhance the knowledge
productivity of enterprises

B ZEMAKE ?
What is MAKE?
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Inaugurated in 1998, the Most
Admired Knowledge Enterprises
Award seeks fo recognize
organizations which out-
perform their peers in creating
shareholder’s wealth by
transforming tacit and explicit
enterprise knowledge and
intellectual capital into superior
products and services. It consists
of the annual Global MAKE Award
and similar studies af regional
levels such as the Hong Kong
and the Asian MAKE Award.
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Following the winning of the Asian MAKE Award
2012, HKPC was named the Top Winner at the Hong
Kong Most Admired Knowledge Enterprise (MAKE)
Award 2012 for its outstanding efforts in developing
knowledge workers to support local businesses.
These honours recognize HKPC's dedication to apply
comprehensive knowledge management (KM) and
intellectual capital management (ICM) strategies

to create values for its stakeholders. With these
strategies, HKPC can systematically gather and
convey the knowledge of its professional consultants
to sustain its industry support.

Over the years, HKPC has been offering KM

and ICM consultancy services to enhance

the knowledge productivity of enterprises for
sustainable development. To better facilitate local
enterprises to begin their ICM journey in a simple
way, a bilingual electronic Intellectual Capital
Management Assessment Toolbox was introduced
in early 2013 to assist SMEs identify the strengths
and weaknesses of their IC portfolio through a self-
assessment exercise and prepare their IC Report in
a structured manner.
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Creative Avenue

In December 2012, “Gangnam Style” became the
first YouTube video to reach a billion views. The fad
might have been over but it shows that the creative
industries have become one of the key contributors

to global economy.

Supported by the various funding schemes of
CreateHK, HKPC assisted a number of local
professional associations to propel the growth of
Hong Kong's creative industries, with a particular
view to create more opportunities for our talents to

showcase their capabilities to the overseas market.

To recognize the achievements of Hong Kong
comic artists and promote the local comic industry,
a 100-metre-long Hong Kong Avenue of Comic
Stars was established in Kowloon Park. Known

as the world’s first theme avenue featuring comic
figures, the initiative was organized by the Hong
Kong Comics and Animation Federation together
with HKPC and Yau Tsim Mong District Council, with

sponsorship from Create Hong Kong.

Establishing the world’s first 100-metre-
long Hong Kong Avenue of Comic Stars
fo promote the local comic industry.

Hong Kong Avenue of Comic
Stars features painted figurines
and bronze handprints of Hong
Kong comic artists



Co-organizing the “Ist Animation
Start-ups Support Program”

with the Hong Kong Digital
Entertainment Association to
help local animation start-ups
find new business opportunities
through promotion on various
channels
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Innovation and Enhancement

In addition to the exhibition of painted figurines and
bronze handprints, it also includes other galleries
to educate the young generation on the history and
production process of local comic industry.

HKPC co-organized the “1st Animation Start-ups
Support Program” with the Hong Kong Digital

Entertainment Association (HKDEA).

Designed for animation companies set up for
not more than four years and with no more
than eight full-time employees, the Program
provided each selected company with a
subsidy of up to HK$80,000 for the production
of a three-minute animation. The participating
companies also benefited from a mentorship
program with animation heavyweights offering
technical training and guidance on business

development.
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International digital entertainment
contests, such as the "DigiConé
Awards”, help start-up
companies explore new business
opportunities.

The final productions of the animation companies
will also be nominated to participate in international
digital enfertainment contests, such as the “DigiCon6é
Awards” to create more exposure for the selected
animation companies to help them find potential

clients and explore new business opportunities.

TBS DigiConé Awards is organized annually by the
Tokyo Broadcasting System (TBS) Television. Ten

countries and regions, including Hong Kong, were
invited to submit their best animations to compete

for the grand award.

The Hong Kong area competition was organized
by the Hong Kong Digital Entertainment Association
and implemented by HKPC. The Hong Kong section
of the 14th TBS DigiCon6 Awards drew enthusiastic
response with over 100 entries.



The 3rd Hong Kong International
Mobile Film Awards is supported
by ten mobile film festivals
around the world to recognize the
achievements of the participating
economies in mobile film
development
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Thanks to the growing popularity of smartphones
and tablet computers, enjoying mobile
entertainment becomes part of our daily life. This
represents a vast market for mobile filmmakers in
Hong Kong.

The 3rd Hong Kong International Mobile Film
Awards was jointly organized by HKPC and Hong
Kong Wireless Technology Industry Association
supported by ten mobile film festivals around

the world to recognize the achievements of

the participating economies in mobile film
development. This year, the Awards received 110
nominations from 10 partnering economies to

compete for this honour.
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Faster and Better
“Good, Fast, or Cheap - Pick Any Two".

The above old saying suggests that accomplishing
all three is difficult but with the help of advanced
technology and automation systems, manufacturers
could produce high quality products efficiently in the

most cost effective manner.

HKPC provides integrated automation solutions to
enhance Hong Kong companies’ productivity across
their business chain from product development to

manufacturing and enterprise management.

Lingerie manufacturers rely on manual process

to produce plastic shot for quality control and
development of bra cups. The technician draws
grade-line on master cones and cuts the plastic
shots manually, which is time-consuming, labour
intensive and prone to substantial wastage due to

cutting errors.

HKPC develops a 3D master cone laser
cutting system to streamline the process
and improve the quality and accuracy of
plastic shot production.



RIFTERFAIR
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TENBBE T —E[=H# HKPC developed a 3D master cone laser cutting
MBRADCLEIA SR ) » #5685 system by integrating optical lens, CO, laser, 3D
WERESS - S LT « 3D CAD/CAM and multi-axis technologies. It has
CAD/CAM K 2831 - :EMFR  streamlined the process and improved the quality
BERRSBEELIES - m and accuracy of plastic shot production. The cutting
REMNEREHENNE )  efficiency is improved by 75% from 2 minutes
2B DE (AFT/E) 4  (manual process) to 30 seconds. The system can
22301 » WERKIBIZFF75% »  drastically save labour cost and enhance efficiency.
PAE AR ©

A& EER Dust and Sand
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HKPC develops new treatment process to solve the SENBREFINERQRS —BIiERERI - WNERSZS - B

environmental issues of silicone rubber surface treatment. PN SIBIRBE22MIE -

To maintain its leading position, a local manufacturer of spectacle frames
adopts new material and advanced manufacturing technologies to add
value to its product while reducing the production and environmental cost.

Silicone rubber materials are widely adopted in a diverse spectrum of
consumer products, but this material requires the spraying of chemicals on
the product surface for anti-dust treatment which gives rise to environmental
issues such as waste chemical and waste water discharge.

HKPC developed a new material freatment process to modify the surface
structure of silicone rubber based on glow discharge plasma technique
such that the spectacle frame surface could repel dust particles hence
conducive to easy cleaning. The new process only involves physical
treatment of surface in vacuum without the use of chemical and water.

Silicone rubber spectacle arms (left) become dust repel after
surface treatment.
HKPC transferred this new process together with other advanced

manufacturing technology to the client, helping the client enters into the
high-end spectacle frame markets.
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With improving capabilities in product design and
development, more and more Hong Kong footwear
companies are migrating upstream to higher value-
added ODM operations.

Funded by the Hong Kong Research Institute of
Textiles and Apparel, HKPC has been developing

a Knowledge-based 3D Shoe Design, Patterning
and Mass Customization System. Shoe design
methodologies and engineering constraints will be
linked with 3D CAD system to facilitate the footwear
design and manufacturing process. Also, common
shoe styles and shoe components will be developed
and stored in a database for easy retrieval, the
local shoes industry will be able to shorten the
product development cycle while maintaining quality

consistency.

Precision optical components have stringent
requirements in terms of form accuracy and surface
quality. Supported by the Innovation and Technology
Fund, HKPC is developing an innovative polishing
system which will significantly enhance the precision
level of optical surface. Manufacturers will be able
to achieve a higher level of precision for entering
the high value added optical components and

engineering parts sector.

HKPC is developing a Knowledge-based
3D Shoe Design, Patterning and Mass
Customization System to facilitate the
footwear design and manufacturing
process.
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=R High Gear
EENBARPNSEARAEEE Hosted by HKPC, the Hong Kong Automotive Parts
HR R 3 B DIMNAPAS) - B3 and Accessory Systems (APAS) R&D Centre was

SEFEINAFRIRER established by the Innovation and Technology
2006 A 1T - DU AN A B Commission of the Government in 2006 to help local

MBS BEERIEMIZHNETE  enferprises capture emerging opportunities in the
B o automotive parts market. The Centre was hosted by

HKPC since its establishment.

EEFH Charge Up
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An IT services company was assisted by APAS to develop a 50kW ultra fast charging station
compliant to the international industry standard CHAdeMO. The charging station can fully
charge an electric vehicle in 35 minutes, which is 10 times faster than normal charging.
Through technology transfer, the company acquired the know-how to manufacture the
ultra fast charging station product integrated with the company’s own smartcard platform
and Octopus e-payment system.

—RERNN R EBRESER B EEEITRDRIER &
NERRATRE T EAMI<IE - R SIERARN2HR (240R327) EPL

BEEAREES - WENBEIRRE - FENBHSE T ERBRIL
THE - OBTERFHEEZRHEME

A power and signal cable manufacturer would like to develop new
business in the EV related industry in the coming future. HKPC provided
technical assistance to the company to develop a low cost Level 2

(240 volt AC) medium speed EV charger and obtain the international
certification. HKPC also takes part in the commercialization of the product
by promoting the R&D results to potential users.
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To facilitate greater synergy and further promote
the commercialization of R&D project deliverables,
APAS was merged with and form part of HKPC with
effect from 1 November 2012. APAS can pool its
resources to focus on R&D projects and technology
matters, thus enhancing its R&D capacity while
HKPC can further leverage on its industry network to
commercialize the R&D results.

With the technical support and R&D services of APAS
and HKPC, enterprises have made inroads into the
green fransportation and onboard infotainment
market in Hong Kong and overseas.

EP LB E A MOST Business Success

MOST1502 B AR E TRYEE AR %L
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MOST150 is an onboard infotainment system for bus based on international industry standard.
One single base MOST150 unit can be connected up to 60 terminals feeding entertainment
and video signals for passengers while they are on a long haul bus frip.

With HKPC's assistance in R&D, a Hong Kong manufacturer of DVD/GPS player successfully
won the contract of supplying MOST system products to coach and bus operators in Thailand
in December 2012. Thousands of coaches and buses in Thailand will be installed with the

system in the coming three years.

£ENB HKPC



HKPC develops a new
nano-particle based signal
enhancement methodology

which enables the
manufacturing of higher
sensitivity biosensor chips
for glucose detection
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First Wealth is Health

Due to the increasing number of chronic patients,
there has been a tremendous demand in the rapid
biosensor strips market. The global market for
biosensors is forecasted to reach US$12 billion by
the year 2015. Glucose biosensors constitute the

largest segment (80%) in the market.

HKPC has developed a new nano-particle

based signal enhancement methodology and

can be integrated with low-cost screen printing
technology. This technological integration enables
the manufacturing of higher sensitivity biosensor
chips for glucose detection. The novel technology
has been disseminated fo the biomedical industry
in collaboration with the Hong Kong Medical &
Healthcare Device Industries Association Limited.

With germs becoming increasingly hazardous to

daily life in the highly populated society, touching of
germs concentrated surfaces of consumer products
or utilities poses a significant threat to public health.
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Supported by the Commercial Research and
Development fund of HKPC, a high-performance
antimicrobial coating has been developed that can
be applied on both metallic and plastic surfaces
through an environmental-friendly physical vapour
deposition under vacuum without any waste upon

completion of the process.

The innovative manufacturing deposition set-up of
antimicrobial coating on metal and plastic surfaces has
been filed as a PRC Utility Patent and the technology

is currently available for technology transfer and
commercialization to relevant industries, such as medical
and surgical device, watch and clock, 3C products,
electrical appliance, cookware and cutlery, etc.

7|
o

HKPC develops a high-
performance antimicrobial
coating for metallic and
plastic surfaces.
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ERETIEB N LSR is Hot

BEPBEREBEDENIIN  FZEECERE  IFEBSEXEH -

Liquid silicone rubber materials are bio-inert which are highly suitable for applications in the area of
medical and health device.
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Liquid silicone rubber (LSR) materials are bio-inert which are highly suitable for applications in the
area of medical and health device.

Facing intense competitions in the traditional market, a manufacturer would like to transform its
business model from supplying traditional compression moulded rubber and silicone products to
high valued-added and precision LSR injection moulded products for the medical and healthcare
industry.

In view of the considerable gap between simple compression moulding and advanced LSR
injection moulding, the client invited HKPC to develop a high precision injection moulding system
and set up a cleanroom workshop for medical and healthcare parts production. Through our
turn-key solution, the client acquired the knowhow which enables the company to move up-
market.
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Testing and Certification
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“Distance tests a horse’s strength. Time reveals a person’s character,”

as an old Chinese proverb puts it. Likewise, product testing is done to

determine a product’s reliability, efficiency and safety.
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It is a crucial procedure in the product development
cycle since the process helps ensure that the
product can satisfy customer’s preferences.

In recent years, the testing and certification industry

has been playing an increasingly significant role due to

more stringent environmental and safety regulations.

Alpha to Beta

In Hong Kong, awareness in software quality and
adoption of disciplined software test methodologies
are still in early stage. Not many organizations,
especially small to medium organizations, adopt
good software testing practices.

HKPC joined hands with Zhuhai Southern Software
Testing Center to establish the Hong Kong Software
Testing and Certification Centre (www.hkstcc.org)
to research on software testing methodologies,
technologies and promote the use of software
testing tools to enhance productivity and quality of
software testing.
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HKPC joins hands with Zhuhai Southern
Software Testing Center to establish

the Hong Kong Software Testing and
Certification Centre.



HKPC is developing a
product certification
scheme for medical herbs
in accordance with ISO
Guide 67.
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Chinese Cures

Chinese medicine is becoming a more and more
popular form of healthcare even in Western countries.
This opportunity brings huge business potential to the
Chinese medicine industry. Hong Kong can capitalize
on this opportunity by developing into a quality
assurance hub to facilitate the trading of Chinese
medicine and in particular the Chinese Materia
Medica (CMM) both locally and internationally.

With support from the Innovation and Technology
Fund (ITF), HKPC has commenced the development
of a product certification scheme for the medical
herbs in accordance with ISO Guide 67.

The proposed scheme involves the process of
verifying whether a product has passed the
performance, quality assurance or qualification
requirements stipulated for certain purposes. The
scheme will be operated on a voluntary basis that
CMM importers and manufacturers can engage
HKCAS accredited bodies for certification and
HOKLAS accredited laboratories for authenticity
testing. The product that has met all requirements
will be issued a certification mark for identification.
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Watch your Movement

Hong Kong has been the world’s second largest
exporter of watches and clocks for years. To
reduce its heavy reliance on Swiss and Japanese
movements import, the local industry is looking
for alternative suppliers of watch movements from
Mainland China, with the intention of upgrading
these movements by replacing some of the critical

components with high quality parts.

Funded by the ITF, HKPC initiated the establishment
of a Watch Movement Components and

Subassemblies Testing Laboratory to design
I A
I -

and acquire the specific testing instruments
and machines, particularly for the performance The Watch Movement Components and
Subassemblies Testing Laboratory provides
testing services and product development
support to local industry.

evaluation of precision components such as
hairspring, escapement, mainspring as well as

the movement quality in terms of chronometer
accuracy. The laboratory will provide testing services
and product development support to individual
companies for upgrading their movements,

components and sub-assemblies.

No Fake

Fei Cui ornaments are hot items in Hong Kong,
Japan, Taiwan and Mainland China. Market demand
for accredited test reports for Fei Cui has therefore
grown rapidly.

Supported by the Hong Kong Council for Testing and
Certification, HKPC and the Gemmological Association
of Hong Kong (GAHK) launched a project to develop
a gem testing laboratory management system and
standard testing methods for “Omphacite” and
“Kosmochlor”, which can be accredited under the
International Standard ISO/IEC 17025.
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Accredited testing services for Fei Cui
ornaments are in hot demand.
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HKPC EMC Centre helps manufacturers
make design improvements to fulfill the
EMC compliance requirements.
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During the year, HKPC and GAHK completed the
development of the standard testing methods and
compiled the guidance and reference manual on
the accreditation system on Fei Cui testing and the

implementation of laboratory management system.

This project is beneficial not only to over 1,500 local
gems trading companies, but also consumers

and buyers. Hong Kong gem testing laboratories
can upgrade their management system in
compliance with ISO/IEC 17025:2005 and apply for
accreditation from Hong Kong Accreditation Service
on testing “Omphacite Jade” and “Kosmochlor
Jade”, enhancing the position of Hong Kong as the

regional Fei Cui frading hub.
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Railway systems consist of a complex electromagnetic environment including signaling,

telecommunications and power systems. A train borne equipment has to fulfill stringent
electromagnetic compatibility (EMC) requirements to ensure passengers’ safety.

Take the in-train public address system as an example, it has to fulfill rigorous EMC testing
requirements before it can be installed in operating trains. A company which was developing a new
train-borne public address system commissioned HKPC to conduct EMC testing on the system.

During the initial test, the system was found vulnerable to electromagnetic interference. Our
EMC Centre consultants analyzed and pointed out the possible mechanism of the problem
and helped the client determine and make appropriate design improvements to fulfill the test

requirements.
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Low Carbon
Manufacturing
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Carbon forms the key element of all life on earth, when living creatures die,
carbon will be released to the atmosphere, taken up by plants and ultimately
recycled in the ecosystem. But humankind is disturbing this delicate cycle by
releasing way too much carbon dioxide into the atmosphere.

ERTERINGRLEE DY As a pioneer of green productivity in Hong
# o EEHDBR E TN EBUY Kong, HKPC is in full throttle to join hands with
NTESTEWNH  BFAZE governments and industry partners to launch

TP ST ISR RETE - industry-wide low carbon initiatives to encourage

Ve NGENE S A and assist enterprises reduce their carbon footprint

o OfFESRIERES (RS - in response fo the threat of climate change.
[EREENFSHE 692 /S
BIBIRARIBERE - BERIEEE
REMA -

Participants of the Cleaner
Production Partnership
Programme achieved significant
savings in energy cost by
adopting energy-efficient
equipment.
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A Quick Peek at CPPP’s
Achievements
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Financed over 2,000 CP
projects

Reduced 10,000 tonnes/yr air
pollutant emissions

Reduced 660,000 tonnes/yr
carbon dioxide emissions
Reduced 10 million tonnes/yr
waste water discharge
Saved RMB700 million/yr
energy costs for factories

The government-funded 5-year Cleaner
Production Partnership Programme was
successfully completed in January 2013
and has exceeded all targets.
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Cleaner Production Partnership

The government-funded 5-year Cleaner Production
Partnership Programme (CPPP) was successfully
completed in January 2013 and has exceeded all targets.
Among the 149 approved demonstration projects, there
was a reasonably well mix of various technologies
covering energy saving, reduction of air pollutant
emissions, and effluent control and reduction respectively.

=G On-site Assessment 800 - 1,000 1,119
== Demonstration Project 120 149
ST Verification Service 500 - 1,000 756
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In addition, about 300 awareness promotion activities
have been organized under the Programme in Hong
Kong and Pearl River Delta (PRD) region to promote
cleaner production technologies and practices. These
activities attracted about 27,000 participants.

The Programme has successfully established a
collaboration platform between HKSAR Government
and its Guangdong counterparts in jointly promoting
cleaner production to the industries. With the support
of Economic and Information Technology Commission
of Guangdong Province (GDEIC), the Programme

has established close working relationship with the
municipal governments of nine PRD cities, including
Dongguan, Foshan, Guangzhou, Huizhou, Jiangmen,
Shenzhen, Zhaoging, Zhongshan, and Zhuhai.

During the year, HKPC also implemented the Hong
Kong-Guangdong Cleaner Production Partners
Recognition Scheme jointly organized by the
Environment Bureau of the HKSAR Government and
GDEIC for the fourth year to give recognition fo the
achievements made by the participating factories
and the sourcing enterprises in encouraging cleaner
production practices through their supply chains.

A total of 109 factories, 3 sourcing enterprises and
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M HEYE C TERFEAERINY 24 environmental technology (ET) service providers

BEEERAEMNMN | 1255 - B were awarded the Cleaner Production Partners
et © commendation in the categories of Manufacturing,
Supply Chain and Technology Service respectively.

ZEtEI S AA B RIS The Programme has also established a platform for
RBEHEBNSIEES » &G working with the ET services providers to implement

RE=—ANEERMmHTrEE8 projects funded by the Programme for Hong Kong-
&EahER - owned factories in the PRD region.

BRERTERE - BUYEsZ  Inlight of the positive feedback from the industries,
StEIZEE ST - BIE2013E4  the Government will provide additional funding of
BF1H%E2015F38318 © 18&#%  HK$50 million to extend the Programme for two years
BB R50008E7T - WZE  from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2015. While HKPC was
SEEENBEBEEWEE - M again appointed as the Programme Secretariat, the
BREHEINSEEE2EE geographical coverage has been extended to cover

BEREE - the entire Guangdong Province and Hong Kong.
& TR R R 2R Carbon Smart

REBIAMPEEIREARSRME ~  To encourage local enterprises to enhance energy
WO EALIREEN - DIR{RE R efficiency, reduce carbon emission, and create
HENBREXNRESIE » L& synergy between businesses and environmental
O TES/EWNMAEE (B35 industries, HKPC and industry partners, supported by
EBERREES | B33 - 7£2012  the Environment and Conservation Fund, launched

FIEEBERIIESN [EBR  a30-month CarbonSmart programme in March

B

The CarbonSmart
programme aims

fo encourage local
enterprises to enhance
energy efficiency,

reduce carbon emission,
and create synergy
between businesses and
environmental industries.

£ENB HKPC



Carbon Audit Pilot Fund provides subsidy
up to HK$30,000 for conducting carbon
audit.
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Low Carbon Manufacturing

2012. This Programme has completed its first year
of implementation and was well received by various
business secfors.

Co-organized by HKPC, the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries, Hong Kong General Chamber of
Commerce, and Business Environment Council,

the programme features a pilot scheme which

will subsidize around 200 companies from office-
based operations, retail, catering and other industry
sectors up to $30,000 to conduct carbon audit.

Since the commencement of the Programme, there
has been steady and encouraging progress along
all fronts. Planned targets have been met in the
number of participants of different activities. Three
seminars and five workshops were held, with over
850 participants in total.

FRICELFESE Greening the Supply Chain

SFZERERMRBERIZXREAREBNSORES @ HICERNSE RTINS
Bie -

EFE-FALVEHEZEFEEND - HIE—EEK [BEMERRABERERE] 06
FHTH - BEENFHEEHRESNRSHOMENY - UEEASHA TR S -

BEE2012F - 5%5tEIE #1200 R 2 EHAM TR - KERERSFHIZE20% @ BER
BBABLRENEFRAEE -

Many global buyers and sourcing firms are now urging their suppliers and contract
manufacturers to set up energy improvement targets and implement emission reduction
measures.

A major US store chain commissioned HKPC to develop an energy assessment tool based on
International Performance Measurement and Verification Protocol (IPMVP) to more accurately
assess the energy conservation performance of its strategic suppliers and manufacturing
factories under its five-year energy efficiency programme.

The Programme has helped more than 200 participating factories in Mainland to reduce
overall energy consumption by 20% by the end of 2012, equivalent to the total annual
electricity consumption of more than 1.4 million households.
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Where Style Goes Green

Textile printing and dyeing consumes considerable
amount of water and energy, which poses an
effluent discharge problem to manufacturers. To
support the industry to adopt green manufacturing,
HKPC successfully developed a supercritical carbon
dioxide dyeing system (SC-CO,). The system, which
uses supercritical state carbon dioxide as the dyeing
agent, can handle a wide range of synthetic textiles
including polyester and nylon, etc.

Supercritical carbon dioxide dyeing system is far more
environmentally friendly than the conventional dyeing
method in the following ways: Firstly, no water is used
in the dyeing process. Secondly, both dyestuff and
carbon dioxide can be reused. Thirdly, no chemicals
is needed in the process, alleviating the impact to the
environment caused by the dyeing industry.

Cotton alone accounted for nearly 40% of the global
market share in textile materials, but the lack of
suitable dyestuffs has hindered the application of
SC-CO; to natural fibres. HKPC is collaborating with
the Hong Kong Research Institute of Textiles and
Apparel to research on the dyeing of natural textiles,
including wool and cotton, by SC-CO, using specialty
dyestuffs that can create dye-textile bonds.

Supercritical carbon dioxide
dyeing system helps the
textile industry achieve green
manufacturing.
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BERFE Greener style with less water

KR —RELEMEOIRZ BN T NEERNE - WRESSKOWERN - UGHISRE TS
TERABVEE K BEBURE

HKPC helps a Dongguan garment factory to meet the effluent discharge standard by modifying the
freatment plants and installing a water recycling system.

—REREMBNRZME - ENKEKBEPELERSTK - BREMESKEIERIELY
MREBIR - RETSHEBIVE KB URE - B9} - REHRERERSNERBESIAKER
BIRBARI - DURDFKSMEEKHE -

EENBRSMEHURT MESSKEIBRIE » W2k S5KOCRHIRE - oERZ - FrRBe
BEKERABRIBEUREE - MEK60%8V S KTOWIBIRER - SREVEXBIMESLIE337
K RERI1951T5K - BREXTHRIBERMES @ ZMEEETLEENBRE N3 —
BR=mE @ BRI KRBREOVAREERERS -

The garment washing process of a garment manufacturer’s factory in Dongguan produces
high volume of wastewater. However, the treatment performance of its original two wastewater
treatment plants could not comply with the effluent discharge standard. In addition, the factory
was also requested by the Dongguan Environmental Protection Bureau to adopt water recycling
to reduce water consumption and wastewater discharge.

HKPC modified the treatment plants for the client and installed a water recycling system. After
the modification, the treated effluent fully complied with the effluent standard and about 60%
of the wastewater was recycled, the daily amount of wastewater discharged was reduced
from 337 m?® to 195 m?. Because of the successful upgrading of the wastewater treatment plant
in this project, HKPC is appointed by the manufacturer to review the upgrade and expansion of
the wastewater treatment plants in another factory in Dongguan.
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Quality Livi
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Standard of living is about how well our basic needs are met,

while quality of life is about the general well-being of individuals
and societies.

ZHEH - EENBEZE T —F  Over the years, HKPC has developed an array of

HIERBEH 4 SEeVRIET =M innovative technologies for use in daily life, many of
ABHFZRBMIRTF TEEA  our services have also directly enhanced the quality
BEEER - of living in Hong Kong.

. . " QUALITY TOURISM SERVICES
BER Quality Service T T

SENEZER—FR [EBE  HKPC continues to be the professional consultant EENER [EERRES )
IRBSARFRETE | 1I2LEH2EFERS  to implement the assessment and recruitment of BT 2R -
RBEEBINEES - EHRDEE  merchants for the Quality Tourism Services Scheme,  HKPC is the professional

BB (RB) £1999F#H  which was established by the Hong Kong Tourism ;Zf;ggg';’cgf:;e Qualiy Tourism
S BERBRMSSTE]) > #8) Board (HKTB) in 1999 to help tourists identify quality

k= A IR HEERFEVMIE  service providers.

=R

HETEIESERENNEENEY  The Scheme is well appreciated in the retail and

M 2013 F28ERIC - H catering service sectors. As at the end of February
8,200 SEFENESEDS © 2013, over 8,200 outlets from the retail and catering
BB [EBRBIRAS ) St2IfE  sectors were accredited under the Scheme.

5h oo IR IBIRE B E2012FET According to the survey conducted by HKTB in
EEES b Eéﬁw%ﬁjﬁi’ﬂﬁ 2012, 92% or more of the accredited merchants are

= [BERBRESTEl] - 8k  satisfied with the QTS Scheme and perceived the
S a/NEILZE =g =b7 Scheme's effectiveness in enhancing both company
=E o image and customers’ confidence.

@ £ENB HKPC
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Quality Wedding Merchant Scheme

HKPC is the deS/gnared third-
party assessor for the “Quality
Wedding Merchant Scheme”.

EEDGR A

HKPC acts as a technical
consultant for the “ERB Manpower
Developer Award Scheme”.

EEIMALEENS - EEEB
SO EIER RIS T VBT
g—BElesr]sta - B

BDZERT A S RS2 AR #3173 PEY
BEEF - £ENSR [BEE
B | sTEISEV BT
1% - REERBR80REFE
% [BEERESF] %S 87

B 8IS EEAI’E « UETRAR
BHESNTED

SENDBUERMNBRENAE
WOBREREBIE - flE
FFNTHR2009F 128 [ A
¥R E]  ERATS
SIF0EREEEL - B5E
HEHLIR - HH240REEEST
ER5T KBEASRELD
BB SR

BELETE
Quality Living

ESD Service Limited worked in partnership with
HKPC to develop and establish Hong Kong's first
certification scheme for the wedding services
industry. The Quality Wedding Merchant Scheme
helps brides-to-be and bridegrooms-to-be identify
quality merchants in the wedding services sector.
HKPC is the designated third-party assessor for

the scheme. To date, over 280 outlets, including
hotels, restaurants, wedding services providers and
retailers, are accredited.

HKPC has been appointed by the Employees Retraining
Board (ERB) as a technical consultant to undertake the
development and assessment of the “ERB Manpower
Developer Award Scheme”, which was launched

in December 2009 to drive a corporate culture that
encourages manpower development. Since the launch
of the scheme, over 240 organizations from various
industries have been accredited in recognition of their
outstanding efforts in manpower development.

BB RFEEMBZ No mystery to outstanding service

RBORENEN—EK
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Service quality and consistency is one of the crifical success factors to stay competitive in the market. A
telecommunications service provider needs to monitor the service quality atf the retail shops. The service
provider was keen to check whether services were rendered in a consistent fashion and devise timely
mechanism fo rectify any service deviation promptly. HKPC help the service provider formulate a service
assessment programme through combining mystery shopper assessment, independent quality control
and web-based reporting and alert system.

The project provides timely information on the front-line performance for tracking service quality and
making service improvements. Of particular importance, the web-based reporting system generates
instant email alert to the shop-in-charge whenever service deviation is identified. The system also
facilitates convenient transfer of assessment records including audio records so that the service provider
can shorten the response time in the service monitoring programme.
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£ENB HKPC

Quality Restaurant
Environmental
Management Scheme
helps the general public
make their green dining
choice from the accredited
frade operators.

To promote the use of environmental practices

for resources utilization, better corporate image

and cost saving, the Hong Kong Federation

of Restaurants and Related Trades and HKPC
organized the Quality Restaurant Environmental
Management Scheme (QREMS) which was funded by

the Environment and Conservation Fund.

It is the first such scheme for the food and beverage
trade in Hong Kong. Twenty-three operators were
honoured as the first batch of QREMS accredited
merchants for their outstanding performance in
adopting green practices. Meanwhile, the general
public will be able to make their green dining choice

from the accredited trade operators.

Under this scheme, HKPC provided training fo the
participants and compiled a technical guidebook
to enhance the environmental management

knowledge of food and beverage practitioners of

various levels.
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The ISAC System wiill turn off the
vehicle engine automatically when the
vehicle is stationary while supplying
cool air with its supplementary air

conditioning system.
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The ISAC system has been
retrofitted onto a taxi for testing
and the results are satisfactory.

BELETE
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Following the successful development of an
Automatic Engine Idle Stop and Air Conditioning
(ISAC) System for a passenger car, HKPC continued

to develop a more advanced system for Taxi.

With the concerns over the road-side air emission
and energy consumption caused by idling motor
engine, the best approach is to reduce engine

idle time as far as practicable. The method of
manual turning off and restarting engine can

be inconvenient in reality. In addition, when the
engine is not running, air conditioning also stops,
causing great discomfort to drivers and passengers,

especially during hot seasons.

To solve this problem, HKPC has developed an

ISAC System to turn off the engine automatically
when the vehicle is safely stopped and turns it on
automatically when the vehicle is ready to drive
again. In addition, a supplementary air conditioning
system will provide uninterrupted air conditioning
during engine switched off as long as two hours.
The developed system has been retrofitted onto a

taxi for testing and the results are satisfactory.
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£ENB HKPC

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is more than
community activities. It can improve the competitiveness
of a business, from brand enhancement to raising
customer loyalty and staff morale, fo reducing
operational risks and costs; ultimately achieving win-
wins for both enterprises and society.

To raise awareness of corporate citizenship
among local enterprises, in collaboration with the
Committee on the Promotion of Civic Education,
HKPC has been organizing the "Hong Kong
Corporate Citizenship Program” since 2010.

Twenty-seven companies and corporate volunteer
teams with outstanding achievements in the
implementation and promotion of CSR were
recognized at The 3rd Hong Kong Outstanding
Corporate Citizenship Awards Presentation
Ceremony.

“"Hong Kong Corporate
Citizenship Program” aims to
raise awareness of corporate
citizenship among local
enterprises.



BELET
Quality Living

ETEINHED—BEE) - 28 The program included a prestige award scheme
SHE [ FEE/NR=EF5t called "Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate

2] DIFRBERETEZETE  Citizenship Award” to recognize enterprises’
SENTIBEEE o 19N » %5t outstanding CSR achievements, together with a

2 EDIE—RAYNEETE) - number of promotional events such as seminars,
B0 - O ZE2A) T /ELS experience sharing and workshops, as well as

PEREITEBRETSS 5 the distribution of electronic booklet of CSR best
HNBESE - BE=F  HH practices. In the past three years, more than 100
1002 AN ES=F 1 local companies were recognized in the award
BBE3,000I1PZEMRFKZ2N5Z  scheme and over 3,000 participants had joined the
S EIFTERIEEE - program’s events.

BBEEESTEEREAE T 55K Tohelp Hong Kong businesses enhance staff morale and
miE—EBRREEHILERFE creafe a delightful corporate culture conducive to standing
BYR LA HETT (Y - EBIZTFFIREL  against adversity, the Promoting Happiness Index
BEESTEEENBSIEE/TSE  Foundation and HKPC jointly conducted Hong Kong's first
EEETET (FIRSESEES - 2 study on happiness-at-work for businesses and compiled
S (BB 2T /Fhgeisgr| o the "Hong Kong Happiness-at-work Index”.

[1881] 1R2012F58%% - 88  The Index was announced in May 2012 and the debut

FBINK64%SEHE L /F -RYE]  survey found that about 64% of the respondents felt
IRt MEBB R T (Fhst happy at work. The average score of happiness-at-work

Launch the "Happy Organization Label N NN . . . .

Scheme” o encourage businesses and 2B N R6.70D (LL10D Rim for Hong Kong businesses is 6.7 (maximum being 10),

organizations fo create a happy working ) BEEMBIBINTRELIEE  which is slightly above the average when compared
environment.

& BRHEKE - with similar surveys in other international cities.

REBIAELERMERETIE  To encourage businesses and organizations to

R T/ERE - 278 AT create a happy working environment, and fo raise
VRN » EEEma4ES)  the happiness-at-work level of the local workforce,
SHEIEHEY BN T/ER ] #  the Foundation and HKPC collaborated again to
EETE] - 2B AT ALSITF launch the “Happy Organization Label Scheme” in
ETRIRIT/FIBE - BO/E  the past year. By pledging their support to building
B IEMNEEE | O [ BI)WEE | happy workplace, the participants will be awarded
RS o the Happy Company or Happy Organization logo.
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It has become a norm that public bodies need to offer services

with quality on a par with the private sector and the standard
contfinues to go up over times.

EEEBTENEREMENS  As a communication tool, a brand identity
EOL stz /s should reflect the continuous development of an
OIS HEHERMMRSS - organization.

S ENEANEEINELR 5 &7 Celebrating 45 years of fruitful partnership with
NRIFFESR  EFELEEND Hong Kong industry, we unveiled a new brand
AMITASER » BAARE T FBHhHE identity to mark an important milestone of serving
RRE BN SRS - B local businesses and the community at large

BITEERR - through rain or shine.
[KFERT ~ RFEEE ] @EEISZFHT
iR
E’Eﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂ;% ReffeShing CO"PO“"e |demifY Partnership with industry is the essence
2B S - BE45ER For the past 45 years HKPC has forged a partnership o fhe new corporate idenfity of HKPC.
CEHEEEBS I B with industry through rain or shine, which is the very

[IWHEENT ~ RFRES | BYkETE essence of our new brand image. Miss Janet Wong,
EEFERINAIFNEZEZE Commissioner for Innovation and Technology of the
TXY A ENBTREMEE > HKSAR Government, Mr Clement Chen, Chairman
EASBEEEEBEIRETI0OF  of HKPC and Mrs Agnes Mak, Executive Director,
REENBNHEER SRR officiated the launching ceremony in October
BENET, - B3N EESE 2012 which was well attended by more than 200
EIEINE=E » O 1T 5ER guests from industry and business associations,
B2 P - BINEERSTE enterprises, government bodies and HKPC's partner
WK LB B EHHmE - organizations from Hong Kong and the Mainland.

@ £ENB HKPC



“Tec” and “Biz", the

new mascots of HKPC,
represent our technology
development and business
management services.
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Caring Organization

Developed by Hong Kong's renowned brand
consultant Mr Tommy Li, HKPC's new brand identity
comes with two spirited mascots — “Tec” and “Biz”,
who made their debut at the launch together with
their creator. These community ambassadors are
personification of HKPC's comprehensive services
and customer-oriented culture. “Tec”, distinguished
by a cubic body and blue safety goggles, represents
HKPC's technology development services.

“Biz", with a round body and a green monocle,
represents HKPC's strength in the field of business
management.

Building Internal Partnerships

As a knowledge-based organization, the multi-
faceted expertise and in-depth knowledge of

our people are our critical success factors. We
strive to provide our professionals with the best
kind of learning opportunities as part of our

human resources development strategy. To build
and nurture our talents, a structured knowledge
inventory was constructed for better preservation of
our critical knowledge and succession planning.
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£ENB HKPC

The Staff Recreation Club
organizes a variety of activities
including the Annual Staff Dinner
fo promote work-life balance.

In the past year, we sponsored our staff members
to attend training programmes in relation to
environment and energy, computer software,
manufacturing and biomedical technologies with
over a thousand participants.

HKPC makes it a priority to build a resourceful

and erudite workforce. Our Trainee Consultant
Programme, introduced since 2008, aims fo recruit
top-notch university graduates and groom them

as talents to meet our long-term succession need.
Running into the fifth year, we have successfully
groomed graduates into proficient Consultants who
are now providing consulting services or performing
research and development work independently.

The Staff Recreation Club of HKPC organized a wide
variety of social, sport and recreational activities
aiming to enhance the team spirit and promote
work-life balance among our employees.



HKPC Volunteers organized a youth
induction programme on industrial
technology for 70 secondary students.

HKPC'’s team won the
champion in the Standard
Chartered SME Marathon
Cup 2013 - 10 KM race.

[EENBZEIR I BABR
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BRs2RARNMtERB L
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Caring Organization

HKPC Volunteers was a voluntary group established
in 2008 to encourage active participation of

HKPC staff in community services and enhance

the industry’s awareness of corporate social
responsibility.

The voluntary group cooperated with the HK Family
Welfare Society in the year to organize a meaningful
youth induction programme on industrial technology
for 70 secondary students. Over 40 staff volunteers
from HKPC participated in the programme. It aimed
at providing the teenagers with opportunities to
learn more about the work environment and the
Hong Kong industry so as to inspire them to prepare
themselves proactively for their future career.

The programme included visits to local and
Mainland manufacturing companies, senior staff
members also shared their personal experience in
career development with the students.
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@ £ENB HKPC

Engaging our Stakeholders

Riding on the launch of our new corporate identity,
a host of new initiatives were introduced during
the year to extend our reach to the business
organizations and the community at large.

Economic uncertainty, slowing global export market
and rising production costs present unprecedented
business challenges to SMEs in Hong Kong. The
“Wise Business 2012” programme was launched
jointly with the Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation to provide SMEs with market updates
and professional expertise through TV infomercial
and print series, SME Summit and free consultancy
services.

The SME Summit was held in June 2012 which
congregated senior government officials, prominent
industrialists, economists, and business leaders to
share their views on current economic environment

and business opportunities in emerging markets.

At the Wise Business SME Summit,
government and business
leaders shared their views

on opportunities in emerging
markets.

Our visitors programme
introduces HKPC’s mission and
services to local and overseas
delegations.



HKPC showcased fun
inspiring technologies and
the “Be a Top Entrepreneur”
card game at the
InnoCarnival 2012.
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Caring Organization

Communicating our mission and services to a wider
audience, our visitor programme introduces a wide
spectrum of industrial support services to local,
Mainland and overseas delegations both through
visits to HKPC and other related industry support
organizations. Under this programme, 4,894 visitors
and 188 delegations visited us during the year.

To raise public awareness of the use of innovative
technology in daily life, HKPC showcased fun-
inspiring technologies developed by its experts at
the InnoCarnival 2012 which was organized by the
Innovation and Technology Commission at the Hong
Kong Science Park.

Under the theme of “Technology and Living”, the
HKPC Pavilion features various applied technologies
developed by HKPC. Visitors also experienced
challenges facing local businesses by joining the “Be
a Top Entrepreneur” card game developed by HKPC.
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Governance Report
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£ENB HKPC

PHEEEES -

HKPC is a statutory organization governed by the HKPC
Ordinance (Chapter 1116 of Laws of Hong Kong). HKPC is
fully committed to maintaining good corporate governance

as we strongly believe that good corporate governance is
essential to accomplishing our public mission and meeting
the expectations of our stakeholders. We attach paramount
importance to adopting accountability, transparency,
fairness and ethics as the cornerstones of our corporate
governance framework.

The Council
The Council is the HKPC's governing body, providing strategic leadership in
the fulfillment of the functions of HKPC.

The Council comprises not more than 23 Members appointed by the Chief
Executive of the HKSAR, of whom five shall be public officers. Among the non-
official members (who represent management, labour and professional or
academic interests), a Chairman and a Deputy Chairman shall be appointed.

The Chairman, and other Members, of the Council are non-executive in
nature. In the year under review, the Council has convened three meetings.
Attendance records of individual member are available on page 111.

The Council on an annual basis approved HKPC's Three Year Forecast, the
detailed Programme and Estimates of HKPC, the Three-year Strategic Plan
and the Services Audit Statement.

Council Members’ responsibility for the Accounts

Council Members acknowledge their responsibility for ensuring that the
preparation of the annual accounts of HKPC is in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The statement of the Auditor of HKPC about their reporting responsibilities
on the accounts of the HKPC is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on page 121.

Council’s Committees

Under the auspices of the Council, four committees have been set up to look
after different aspects of Council Business. These four committees are the Audit
Committee, the Finance Committee, the Staffing Committee and the Business
Development Committee. All the Committees are accountable to the Council.
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containing commercially sensitive or confidential information and the
minutes of the Audit Committee) are made available on a non-attributable

basis on HKPC's website.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is established to monitor and make
recommendations to enhance HKPC's healthy corporate governance in
financial reporting, risk management, internal control, appointment and
performance of the external auditor, and compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. The Committee is authorized by the Council to investigate
any activity and resolve any disagreement within its scope of duties. Staff
members can directly report to the Chairman of the Audit Committee on
cases of malpractice or irregularities.
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£ENB HKPC

The Audit Committee is chaired by a Council member and currently has
6 members. It met four times during the year under review. Attendance
records of individual members are set out on page 111.

Finance Committee

The Finance Committee monitors the financial performance of HKPC and ensures
that funds made available are properly accounted for. The Committee approves
maijor changes to HKPC's policies and practices relating to procurement, building
management, fixed asset management and charging levels of HKPC's services.
The Committee recommends HKPC's Three-year Strategic Plan, Three-year
Forecast, an annual Programme and Estimates and the transfer of funds between
maijor heads of expenditure, for consideration by the Council. The Committee also
advises the Council on matters relating to HKPC's financial policies and matters
that have a significant financial impact on HKPC.

The Finance Committee, which is chaired by a Council member, currently
has six members. During the year in review, it met three times. Attendance
records of individual members are set out on page 111.

Staffing Committee

The Staffing Committee approves the appointment of General Managers.
The Committee monitors the staffing situation and recommends changes to
the Council where appropriate. It advises the Council on human resources
development policies. The Committee also monitors HKPC's general terms
and conditions of service, to ensure that these are adequate to recruit and
retain competent staff, and recommends changes to the Council where
necessary. The Committee provides a channel between the Council and staff
for the communication of grievances about general terms and conditions of
service, in situations where they cannot be resolved by consultation.

The Staffing Committee is chaired by a Council member and currently has
ten members. It met three times during the year in review. Attendance
records of individual members are set out on page 111.

Business Development Committee

The Business Development Committee reviews the business activities

of HKPC, considers substantial changes to the HKPC's Services Audit
Statement, explores new business opportunities, and advises the Council on
the business development of HKPC in relation to HKPC's role in the changing
industrial environment. The Committee also monitors the performance of
HKPC's subsidiary companies.

The Business Development Committee is chaired by a Council member. It
currently has eight members. During the year in review, it met three times.
Attendance records of individual members are set out on page 111.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Council aftaches significant importance to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance and the enhancing of its fransparency and
accountability to the public. The external and internal audit systems are
instrumental in this regard.

External Audit
The Council has appointed KPMG as the external auditor to conduct an audit
of its financial statements.

The external audit plays an important role in reviewing the financial
statements as well as strengthening the internal controls of HKPC. Before
the audit commences, the external auditor discusses the nature and scope
of the audit with the Audit Committee if necessary, together with any matters
the external auditor may wish to discuss in the absence of management.
Any management letter from the external auditor and the management's
response will be reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Internal Audit

The Council’s Internal Audit and Risk Management Office ("ARO") is directed
by the Audit Committee of HKPC to assist the management with the risk
management function of the Council.

ARO proactively identifies and examines any risky area in the operations and
proposes appropriate internal control measure in line with the mandates for
corporate governance. ARO also formulates and executes an overall audit
policy and strategy of the Council to safeguard its assets, ensure compliance
with relevant laws and regulations, promote operational efficiency and
effectiveness and secure accuracy and reliability of its records.

ARO reports directly to the Audit Committee. At every Audit Committee
meeting, ARO reports to the Committee its findings on auditing of control
sufficiency and compliant situation of different operations of HKPC.

In the year under review, the ARO had audited 8 operations covering project,
financial, administration and human resources aspects of HKPC. The audit
job plans are reviewed and agreed by the Audit Committee in advance.

Internal Control
To ensure an effective system of internal control is in place, the Management
has also performed the following tasks during the reporting period:

« review the effectiveness of the system of internal control and report to
the Council through review of the findings and recommendations as set

out in the reports of internal audit;

« review the resources for all divisions during the annual Programme and
Estimates exercise;
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« conduct frequent review of the business, external environment and
significant risks as part and parcel of the annual Programme and
Estimates exercise; and

meet with external auditors together with the Audit Committee Chairman
and report any control weaknesses as well as the effectiveness of
financial reporting and compliance as discussed during the meeting of
the Audit Committee.

Transparency

In accordance with the requirements of the HKPC Ordinance, the HKPC's
Annual Report, with the statement of accounts, is tabled at the Legislative
Council each year. To enhance transparency, the annual emoluments of each
and every senior executive at the top two tiers of the HKPC management are
disclosed under Note 16 to the financial statements on page 163.

The attendance of Members in Council and Committees is detailed on page
m.

Since November 2009, the minutes of the Council and Committees
(except discussion items containing commercially sensitive or confidential
information and the minutes of the Audit Committee) have been made
available on a non-attributable basis on HKPC's website.

Separately, the Council adopted a two-tier reporting system for declarations
of interest by Council Members, who are required to disclose upon first
appointment and annually thereafter proprietorships, partnerships or
directorships of companies. They are also required to disclose remunerated
employments, offices, trades, professions or vocations as well as
shareholdings in companies, public or private (being 1% or more of the
company'’s issued share capital).

The register of declarations is made available for public inspection upon
request. Furthermore, Members are required, as soon as practicable after they
have become aware of it, to disclose to the Chairman (or the Council) their
interest in any matter under consideration by the Council prior to the discussion.

Whistle Blowing

The Council has launched a new whistle blowing policy in March 2013
to provide the wider public with reporting channels and guidance

on whistleblowing. Persons who have legitimate concern about
irregularity, misconduct or malpractice of HKPC or any staff member
may raise the matter directly through mail or a dedicated email address
(whistleblowing@hkpc.org) to the Audit Committee (AC) Chairman of the
Council. Only persons who are designated by the AC Chairman will have
access to such email or correspondence.

The AC Chairman will review the complaint and decide how it should be
addressed such as nominating an appropriate investigating officer or set up
a special committee to investigate into the matter independently.
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Dr Cliff Chan Chok-ki (fill 31/12/2012)
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Mr Leung Kwong-chuen (from 1/1/2013)
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Dr Elizabeth Shing Shiu-ching, BBS, JP

Dr Jack Yeung Chung-kit
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Mr Sin Kai-ming, MH

Ms Marilyn Tang Yin-lee
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Performance at a glance

Key Performance Measures

Service Delivery
Number of consultancy projects

Number of training course participants
Number of people attended exhibitions/

study missions/conferences
Financial Result (HK$M)

Income from consultancy projects

Income from training courses

Income from exhibitions/study missions/

conferences
Income from manufacturing
support projects
Effectiveness
Marketing effort
Number of events/
networking activities for
industry associations/free
seminars
Number of people attended
Customer satisfaction
Customer satisfaction index

2009/10

965
4,400

4,680

171.302
27.867

7.482

24.604

269
22,792

8.47

2010/M

202.206
21.002

7.74

23.408

20m12

1,361

6,542

2,631

232.925
21428

13.833

21.243

273
21,694

8.66

201213

1,030

5,434

2,048

260.619
18.537

10.348

22.318

297
22,629

9.1
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Management

EEBEEZ TS ENRRITHEBEI0E -
EREE  TIABBLEENREDRIMII
EAMRNEBEEAT - BE2HREHAT -~
ABERNSEBENS R o

Mrs Mak has over 30 solid years of
experience in information technology. Prior
to joining Hong Kong Productivity Council,
Mrs Mak founded her own IT consultancy
business. She also has extensive working
experience in both private and public
sectors having held key posts in various
communication companies as well as
statutory body.
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ZHEE Mrs Agnes Mak Tang Pik-yee, mH, Jp

#82 Executive Director

Along with her full-time career, Mrs Mak has been very active within the Hong
Kong IT Community. She was the President of Hong Kong Computer Society
(1995-1998), Chairman of the Advisory Committee of Science Faculty of Hong
Kong Baptist University, Chairman of Committee in Information Technology
Training and Development of Vocational Training council, Vice Chairman of the
General Support Program Vetting Committee of the Innovation and Technology
Fund, Vice Chairman of Employee Retraining Board, Board member of Hong
Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation, Member of Hong Kong
Councils for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications and
Member of the Social Welfare Advisory Committee.

In addition to being an enthusiast in promoting the quality of higher
education and enriching vocational education, Mrs Mak is also an advocate
in advancing professional recognition for IT professionals in Hong Kong. She
has assumed Chairman of the Information & Communications Technology/
Industry Training Advisory Committee under the Education Bureau of HKSAR
Government. Under her leadership, the Specification of Competency Standards
for the IT industry was successfully developed. She has also taken up the
position of Director In-charge of the Hong Kong Institute for IT Professional
Certification which pioneers the first IT Professional credentialing scheme in
Hong Kong.

In 1995, Mrs Mak was recognized as one of Ten Most Outstanding Young
Persons in the Hong Kong community that made significant T contributions.
In 1999, she was conferred Distinguished Fellow of the Hong Kong Computer
Society. In 2002, she was appointed as a “Justice of Peace”. In July 2007, she
was awarded “Medal of Honor” by the HKSAR Government. And in November
2008, she was conferred Honorary Fellow of Vocational Training Council.
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Having worked in the private sector, Mr
Tony Lam joined the civil service as an
Administrative Officer in 1991 gaining
some 20 years of experience in public
administration before joining the Hong
Kong Productivity Council.
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Senior Management

MEE Mr Tony Lam Chik-ting
Bf2# (H4EEFS) Director, Corporate Services

Over the years, Mr Lam has been involved in the formulation and
implementation of public policy in a very wide range of areas. His experience
covers health care, municipal services and public security. Additionally, he
has also been involved in the policy areas of industry, trade, innovation and
technology development.

Prior fo joining the Hong Kong Productivity Council, Mr Lam participated in

the planning and implementation of several cross-boundary mega transport
infrastructures including the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge, the Guangzhou-
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Express Rail Link and the Hong Kong-Shenzhen Airport
Rail Link.

Mr Lam graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Social

Sciences (Honours) Degree. He joined HKPC as Director, Corporate Services, in
August 2009.
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Senior Management
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Mr Joseph Poon has over 30 years of
experience in business and consulting. His
portfolio spans automotive, innovation,
automation, intellectual property
management, patent and trademark,
intellectual capital management, to branding
and Kaizen consulting.

BRENALEENBCA » SBE—RE
BEEMOSEBEN - MRREBET*
BBUNTEEZTZE  SBEERBEX
RZVEBRD  SERERTNEIWN
g EBREBESESR  SBEERR
RRESBMOTERSZEIERES  REBEEN
EMERATES -

BRERXRREMIAS - EHEHTIE
B3N - HBEREHFAH =RBA
BLEESERRENKIZBRTHN - &
TERI1986FNABTBLEENRES -

£ENB HKPC

EX4E Mr Joseph Poon Wing-sang
B2 (R#5822) Director, Technology Development

Prior to joining HKPC, Mr Poon held a senior management position in a
machinery manufacturing company. He is currently an executive committee
member of the Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association; Honourary
Advisor of the Hong Kong Diecasting and Foundry Association; committee
member of the Hong Kong Mould & Die Council; Vice Chairman of the
Hong Kong Association for the Advancement of Science and Technology;
honorary board member of the Hong Kong Medical and Healthcare Device
Industries Association; Director of the SZ-HK Productivity Foundation Co Ltd.

Mr Poon obtained a Bachelor's degree in Mechanical Engineering from
the University of London, UK and a Master of Science degree in Production
Management and Manufacturing Technology from Strathclyde University,
UK. Mr Poon joined HKPC in 1986.
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01. 3R+#¥8 Dr Lawrence Cheung  02. &FEET Mr Derek Louie

NEREFEBAEIE
General Manager, Automotive &
Electronics

08.{@=Z% Mr Jonathan Ho

R BRI
General Manager, Corporate
Communications

BEMERBE AR
General Manager, Automation Service

05.;&tHZE Mr Jeremy Poon

EHER BRI
General Manager,
Intellectual Capital Development

09.5AEY Mr Dennis Wu

FEATDERRATHEREE
General Manager, Corporate Human
Resources & Administration

03.Z 834 Mr Tsang Kam Lam

RIEESRRAE

General Manager, Environmental

Management

06.Z/DI8 Mr Gordon Lo

BHARIK R REPE R
General Manager,
IT & Business Management

10. E8X% Mr Edmond Che

FI75 RIRIE L IRAC T2
General Manager, Finance &
Procurement

04.ZE% Mr Thomas Lee
R BERIF BB 1R TE

General Manager, Materials &
Manufacturing Technology

07.;8 6853 Mr Gordon Poon

[apieling TN s
General Manager, WFOEs
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Automotive Parts and Accessory Systems R&D Centre Ltd.
Automotive Parts and Accessory Systems R&D Centre Ltd. (APAS) was
established on 31 March 2006 by the Government under the Hong Kong
R&D Centre Programme to undertake market-led R&D programmes and
commercialize their results for the development of the local automotive parts

and accessory systems industry. APAS is hosted by HKPC.

Based on the recommendation of a comprehensive review of the R&D
Centres by the Government in December 2011, APAS was merged with HKPC
on 1 November 2012 to facilitate greater synergy and bring more benefits

to the industry. Subject to the completion of the necessary legal procedures
in relation to the merger, the Company will be wound up by the way of

voluntary liquidation by shareholders.

Board of Directors
Mr Ng Wai-hung (Chairman of the Board), Dr Herbert Hui, Mrs Agnes Mak,
Prof Alex Wai and Miss Janet Wong.

As at 31 March 2013

Productivity (Holdings) Limited and Wholly Foreign Owned
Enterprises in the PRD

The Productivity (Holdings) Limited was established on 28 July 2003 with
the objective to promote productivity excellence through the provision of
integrated support across the value chain of Hong Kong firms operating in
the Pearl River Delta (PRD).

This objective is achieved through incorporating 3 Wholly Foreign Owned
Enterprises (WFOEs) in the PRD, namely Productivity (Guangzhou) Consulting
Co. Ltd., Productivity (Dongguan) Consulting Co. Ltd., and Productivity
(Shenzhen) Consulting Co. Ltd. in 2003 and 2004.
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WEAD
Subsidiaries

Productivity (Holdings) Limited

Board of Directors

Mr Clement Chen (Chairman of the Board), Mrs Agnes Mak, Mr Victor Ng,
Dr Elizabeth Shing and Miss Janet Wong.

Productivity (Guangzhou) Consulting Co. Ltd.
Productivity (Dongguan) Consulting Co. Ltd.
Productivity (Shenzhen) Consulting Co. Ltd.

Board of Directors
Mr Tony Lam (Chairman of the Board), Mrs Agnes Mak, Mr Joseph Poon,
Mr Alfonso Tam, Mr Raymond Cheng and Dr Samuel Leung.

As at 31 March 2013
HKPC Technology (Holdings) Co. Ltd.

HKPC Technology (Holdings) Co. Ltd. (HKPCT) was established on 1

September 2004 as a vehicle for the commercialization of HKPC's patents,
technologies and project deliverables with market potential. The Company
aims to develop a new technology-based generation through providing a

more direct and effective avenue to turn R&D deliverables info products.

During the year, HKPCT successfully commercialized, via a non-exclusive
licence, a platinum electroforming technology which enables a cost-
effective manufacturing process for a wide range of light weight and
specially configured products in jewellery, luxury goods, and precious metal

components etc.
Board of Directors
Mr Clement Chen (Chairman of the Board), Ir Daniel Cheng, Miss Janet

Wong, Mrs Agnes Mak and Dr Jack Yeung.

As at 31 March 2013
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Financial

BB SE

Independent Auditor's Report

ROBEBEBER

Consolidated Balance Sheet

BEBEBR

Balance Sheet

ROIRIRB

Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account
NI i

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
WSZ8RE

Income and Expenditure Account
RofRkE2ExR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Reserves
roRTMmE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AR B EE

Notes fo the Accounts
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Independent AUQIIOFS

To the council members of Hong Kong Productivity Council
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong Productivity Council
Ordinance)

We have audited the consolidated accounts of the Hong Kong Productivity
Council (“the Council’) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on
pages 123 to 172, which comprise the consolidated and Council balance
sheets as at 31 March 2013, the consolidated and Council income and
expenditure accounts, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in reserves and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Council Members’ responsibility for the consolidated
accounts

The Council Members are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
accounts that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and for such internal control as the Council Members
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated accounts
that are free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated accounts
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 18 of the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated accounts are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated accounts. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment

of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated accounts,

whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated accounts that give a true and fair view in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Council Members, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated accounts.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated accounts give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Council and of the Group as at 31 March 2013 and
of the Council's and the Group’s surplus and the Group’s cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 July 2013



Consolidated

R201373/5318 at 31 March 2013

(LUBHS 7T Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BEE
Note 2012
FERBDEE Non-current assets
BEEE Fixed assets 4 $198,797,327  $202,585,374
PRIEZIZE b B Investment in non-controlled
NINEE subsidiary 5 10,000 10,000
e IR Interest in an associate 6 1,506,230 1,465,890
b v Deposits 7 18,462,257 7,030,503
e $218,775,814  $211,091,767
REEE Current assets
N=F a) Consumables $- $57,321
FEBERR « YRIU I8 Accounts receivable, prepayments
Rigs and deposits 7 30,838,494 41,072,325
RITEIRIES Cash at bank and in hand 8 203,662,878 187,154,373
... ..8234501,372  $228,284,019
RBEE Current liabilities
FENERRIESTER Accounts payable and accruals 9 $148,177,829 $154,001,101
JEINIESIEHIMY B Amount due to a non-controlled
NIRIB subsidiary 10 339,910 350,080
N NS/ E] Amount due to an associate 10 803,903 793,978
ENRIB Current taxation 19(c) 5,494 96,157
$149,327,136 $155,241,316
REEERE Net current assets $85,174,236 $73,042,703
FEE NET ASSETS $303,950,050 $284,134,470
LENBEEER Capital subvention fund and reserves
ENERFEE attributable to the Council $302,352,864 $281,620,066
JEiEHIERE R Non-controlling interests 1,597,186 2,514,404
BAENERER CAPITAL SUBVENTION FUND
AND RESERVES 1 $303,950,050 $284,134,470

S ENBZEER2013F78308 EWT I & -
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council Members on 30 July 2013.

E130EH 17280 EEAREH—SB1D -

)

)

Chairman £/%

Deputy Chairman 83

The notes on pages 130 to 172 form part of these accounts.
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JR2013F3/5318 at 31 March 2013
(LB 738511/ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

By 5E
Note 2012

FERBEE Non-current assets
BEEE Fixed assets 4 $198,023,157  $202,065,338
RVEBATRE Investments in subsidiaries 5 18,732,000 18,732,000
B Deposits 7 18,462,257 7,030,503
e meea e $235,217,414  $227,827,84]
REEE Current assets
FEUBRTR « YaIUFRIB Accounts receivable, prepayments

Rigs and deposits 7 $30,300,175 $39,370,334
EINNE AT RIS Amounts due from subsidiaries 10 11,248,003 15,359,088
BOGERERT Cash at bank and in hand 8 178,770,526 156,004,255
e ..._.........5220,318,704  $210,733,677
RENBE Current liabilities
BN EERKIESTER Accounts payable and accruals 9 $140,968,378 $146,051,733
ENIEADRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 10 14,338,013 12,914,999
e eeoeoeoieoasooeeooiiooeiooaiocseoceiocasocasoccseccesocesocescccoccocecosl Bl $155,306,391 _ 5158,966,732
RBEEPE  Netcumentassets = $65,012,313 551,766,945
TEE NET ASSETS $300,229,727 $279,594,786
BEXEMERGHR CAPITAL SUBVENTION FUND

AND RESERVES 11 $300,229,727 $279,594,786

G ENBZEENR2013F78308 RAENWFTI M -
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council Members on 30 July 2013.

) Chairman /%

) Deputy Chairman 8=

E130E B8N TEAESN—2B4) o The notes on pages 130 to 172 form part of these accounts.
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Consolidated Income and Expendifure

EZ220131F35310 ILLFE for the year ended 31 March 2013
(OB #7581 Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

By EE
Note 2012

LN Income
TE eI EED Government subvention for recurrent
activities 12 $172,403,406 $161,641,000
ARFEUA Service income 13 359,751,519 334,303,970
E AU A Other income 14 10,637,202 10,592,465
BTSN D AR Share of profit of an associate 21,744 -
$542,813,871  $506,537,435
X Expenditure
B E%E Staff emoluments 15 (309,713,333) (294,204,996)
Hitsz Other expenses 18 (235,669,444) (224,645,844)
EGEE=E T EE Share of loss of an associate - (15,707)
$(2,568,906) $(12,329,112)
Pis Income tax 19(a) (191,577) (232,254)
$(2,760,483) $(12,561,366)
B8 () : Transfer from/(to):
— B YIEE894889E A - Capital subvention fund to match
BB AEENE with the related costs of
- REGQTEE — Loss/(gain) on disposal of fixed assets
B8 (E) 1la) 85,637 (181,278)
— FERITEEHR - Depreciation charge for the year 1(a) 25,100,089 21,873,662
—BIREANEEETEESE - Capital subvention fund in relation to the
BEARSMERN difference between fixed assets
EXEF® purchased and capital subvention
for the year 11(a) (1,898,415) (36,931)
ERBRER Surplus for the year $20,526,828 $9,094,087
FER : Attributable to:
—4ENB — The Council 1(b) $21,452,028 $9,697,117
— FEIRHIME R A — Non-controlling inferests (925,200) (603,030)

$20,526,828 $9,094,087

FE1302FE 17280 EBEARBE 89 —801D °

The notes on pages 130 to 172 form part of these accounts.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

B2 2013F3H31EIEFIZ for the year ended 31 March 2013
(LB 738511/ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BosE

FRIBRER Surplus for the year $20,526,828 $9,094,087
FREMEENE Other comprehensive income for the year
RrEDE A\ BRHAE Exchange differences on translation

([CPER ) %3588 of accounts of operations in the

BERER People’s Republic of China (“PRC") (100,227) 632,970
FREERE Total comprehensive income for the year $20,426,601 $9,727,057
x’E : Attributable to:
—HENS — The Council $21,343,819 $10,306,367
— JEEH MR s — Non-controlling interests (917,218) (579,310)
FREERE Total comprehensive income for the year $20,426,601 $9,727,057

E130EF 1728 EBEARE 93D -
The notes on pages 130 to 172 form part of these accounts.
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Income and Expenditure

B2 20131F35310 ILLFE for the year ended 31 March 2013

(OB HS 758E1T Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

[
WA Income
TE eI EED Government subvention for recurrent
activities 12 $172,403,406 $161,641,000
ARFEUA Service income 13 353,561,993 327,803,300
E AU A Other income 14 10,093,881 9,718,348
$536,059,280 $499,162,648
< Expenditure
BEHE Staff emoluments 15 (307,157,931) (291,323,607
Hitsz Other expenses 18 (230,942,698) (221,512,142)
$(2,041,349) $(13,673,101)
LASPACEIN Transfer from/(to):
— ERBEBEMEEAEA - Capital subvention fund to match
REHNEAEHNT with the related costs of
- REEEEE — Loss/(gain) on disposal of
BE (&) fixed assets 1(a) 85,637 (181,278)
— ERIEEAR — Depreciation charge for the year 1(a) 25,100,089 21,873,662
—BREANBEESEEEE - Capital subvention fund in relation to the
REAEHNERD difference between fixed assets
BEXEHT purchased and capital subvention
for the year 1(a) (1,898,415) (36,931)
EHEN BEIERER Net surplus transfer to revenue reserve 11(b) $21,245,962 $7,982,352

E130EF 1728 EBEARE 3D -
The notes on pages 130 to 172 form part of these accounts.
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Statement of Changes in Reserves

@2 20137E3831E IETF/Z for the year ended 31 March 2013
(EOB /32117 Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FEREEND
Attributable to the Council

FER
HrEE ERBHE WABHER RERE 2% e BREEE

Capital Non-
subvention Revenue Exchange controlling Total
Note fund reserve reserve Total inferests reserves
R20nFARBMiEER Balance at 1 April 2011 $232,416,514 $37,216,963 $2,181,684 $271,815,161 $3,093,714  $274,908,875
rEERY/(BE) Surplus/(deficit) for the year = 9,697,117 = 9,697,117 (603,030 9,094,087
HirzElE Other comprehensive income = = 609,250 609,250 23,720 632,970
FAZENE Total comprehensive income = 9,697,117 609,250 10,306,367 (579,310] 9,727,057

EXBNRIEE Net movement in capital
subvention fund Ma) (501,462) = - (501,462 = (501,462)
R2012E3 8318801545 Balance at 31 March 2012 $231,915,052  $46,914,080 $2,790,934  $281,620,066 $2,514,404  $284,134,470
REREENRS
Attributable to the Council

FER
frsE BXEHE WASBIRE BRRIE REER iERe

Capital Non-
subvention Revenue Exchange controlling Total
Note fund reserve reserve interests reserves
R2012F4B1BER Balance at 1 April 2012 $231,915,052  $46,914,080  $2,790,934 $281,620,066  $2,514,404 $284,134,470
AEERS /(B8) Surplus/(deficit for the year - 21,452,028 - 21,452,028 (925,200) 20,526,828
Htt2Ela Other comprehensive income - - (108,209) (108,209) 7,982 (100,227)
FRZENG Total comprehensive income - 21,452,028 (108,209) 21,343,819 (917,218) 20,426,601

EXRENTBHE Net movement in capital

subvention fund Tla) (61,021) - - (61,021) - (61,021)
R2013 383188 &EE:  Balance at 31 March 2013 $231,304,031  $68,366,108  $2,682,725 $302,352,864  $1,597,186 $303,950,050

FE130EE 172809 BAREH—80D °

The notes on pages 130 to 172 form part of these accounts.

@ H£ENB HKPC



Consolidated Cash

B2 20131F35310 ILLFE for the year ended 31 March 2013
(OB HS 758E1T Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

By EE
Note 2012

EEEH Operating activities
SBIRTMNEZRE Net cash inflow from operations 20 $32,417,306 $9,082,505
BUCRES BN ER Hong Kong Profits Tax recovered - 22,203
BENDOBREEMER PRC Corporate Income Tax paid (282,240) (136,097)
BETHHRTANEFR Net cash inflow from operating activities | $32135,066 $8,968,611 _
REFTH Investing activities
BRI 2 Interest received $1,288,477 $1,276,917
2 =@M EEESER  Increase in fixed deposits with maturity
over 3 months at acquisition (157,251,643) (76,467,560)

— BRI EEHEREES  Proceeds from matured fixed deposits with

= maturity over 3 months at acquisition 140,179,749 75,441,803
REBEEEMNSRE Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 21,215 349,024
SNBABEEERS Payment for the purchase of fixed assets (34,429,326) (23,900,433)
BRATHNREMEFA _Net cash outflow from investing activities | $(50,191,528) __$(23,300,249)
A& EED Financing activities
BIEBEANEBEEEDN Government subvention for the purchase

BUFERD of fixed assets $17,010,000 $16,337,000
BERDESTEIFTERIE Proceeds from Resource Allocation

Exercise ("RAE") - 4,816,991

MEPSOREAANFR Net cash inflow from financing activities $17,010,000 521,153,991
RERREZEEY Net (decrease)/increase in cash

(B4), 1810 and cash equivalents $(1,046,462) $6,822,353
RAEBNRER Cash and cash equivalents

REFEY at 1 April 145,958,731 137,939,122
PERE AV Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 483,073 1,197,256
R3IBINBNRER Cash and cash equivalents

REFEY at 31 March 8 $145,395,342 $145,958,731

E10EF 1728 EBEARE 3D -
The notes on pages 130 to 172 form part of these accounts.
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the Accounts

(OB 5511/ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 Status of the Council

The Council is a subvented body corporate established in 1967 under

1 FREENRESHIRNRT
BBLENRERS ([£ENB])) B—&
BUS & B#AE - IRI96TFRZR(EBE

the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance. lts registered office and

ENREBKRR) RII - EENBHE
MmERNESZXEEMBREENEE
ZEST8SREETIAIR -
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@ £ENB HKPC

principal place of operations is HKPC Building, 78 Tat Chee Avenue,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Council and its subsidiaries (together

referred to as the “Group”) are to promote increased productivity, and the
use of more efficient methods throughout Hong Kong’s business sectors.

Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance
These accounts have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first

effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting

period of the Group and the Council. Note 3 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group and the Council for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these accounts.

(b) Basis of preparation of the accounts

The consolidated accounts for the year ended 31 March 2013,
comprise the Council and certain of its subsidiaries (see note 5) and
the Group’s interest in an associate.
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IRBME
Notes to the Accounts

(LOBHS /R8T Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the accounts (continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the accounts is
the historical cost basis. The preparation of accounts in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are
exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
accounts from the date that control commences until the date

that control ceases. Infra-group balances and transactions and

any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated accounts. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.
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RBME
Notes to the Accounts

(OB 7S EELT Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 ERBEPER (B)
(c) Y ERTRIFERIZRER (&)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
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@ £ENB HKPC

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Council, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a confractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated balance
sheet within reserves, separately from reserves attributable to the
Council. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income and expenditure
account and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total surplus or deficit and total comprehensive

income for the year between non-controlling interests and the Council.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result

in a loss of control are accounted for as reserve transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated reserves to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill
and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in the income and expenditure account.
Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate (see note 2(d)) or jointly controlled entity.

In the Council’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(g)).
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IRBME
Notes to the Accounts

(LOBHS /R8T Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Council has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
accounts under the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of

the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post-acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the associate’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating fo the investment (see note 2(g)). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the associate and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income and expenditure account,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items

of the associate’s other comprehensive income is recognised in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its inferest in the
associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal and constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity method together
with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case they are recognised immediately in the income and expenditure
account.
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Notes to the Accounts

(OB 7S EELT Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 FRIETPER (1)
d) BERT (8)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Associates (continued)
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When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in the
income and expenditure account. Any interest retained in that former
investee af the date when significant influence is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

In the Council’s balance sheet, an investment in an associate is

stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(g)).

(e) Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(g)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of fixed
assets, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

EBEEDRERKE
([EEDRE]) 502

HEEFHNETR

S AN 104

| =N 3%

BERRIE 3E10EE

Hong Kong Productivity Council
Building ("HKPC Building”) 50 years

Leasehold improvements
— Office 10 years
- Non-office 3 years

Furniture and equipment 3 1o 10 years
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TR E B RN ARE PR -

@ £ENB HKPC

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
fixed assets are determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the
income and expenditure account on the date of retirement or disposall.



IRBME
Notes to the Accounts

(LOBHS /R8T Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(f) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance
of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.
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(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the following
exception:

— Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair
value of which cannot be measured separately from the fair
value of a building situated thereon at the inception of the
lease, is accounted for as being held under a finance lease,
unless the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
income and expenditure account in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the income and expenditure account
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to the income and expenditure
account in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term.
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(OB 7S EELT Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 EESEHBER (8) 2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(g) EERE (9) Impairment of assets
(i) EEmBHBENEMEINIRIE (i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
BOBVE receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current receivables
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that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end

of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective

evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment

includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group

about one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined

and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries and an associate (including
those recognised using the equity method (see note 2(d))), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with note 2(gl(ii). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount in accordance with note
2(qfii).
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(9) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
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receivables (continued)

— For trade and other current receivables carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This assessment is
made collectively where financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through the income and expenditure account. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset's carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of accounts receivable, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses

for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against accounts
receivable directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in the income and expenditure account.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(9) Impairment of assets (continued)
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(i) Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at

the end of each reporting period to identify indications that the

fixed assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is

estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value-in-use. In assessing value-
in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money

and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows independently
li.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income and
expenditure account if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value-in-use, if determinable.
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(LOBHS /R8T Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(9) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the income and expenditure
account in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(h) Service contracts

Service confracts are contracts specially negotiated with a customer
for the provision of services, where the customer is able to specify
the major elements of the project. The accounting policy for contract
revenue is sef out in note 2(pl(ii). When the outcome of a service
contract can be estimated reliably, confract costs are recognised

as an expenditure by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract at the end of the reporting period. When it is probable that
total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected
loss is recognised as an expenditure immediately. When the outcome
of a service contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract costs
are recognised as an expenditure in the period in which they are
incurred.

Service confracts in progress atf the end of the reporting period are
recorded at the net amount of costs incurred plus recognised surplus
less recognised losses and progress billings, and are presented

in the balance sheet as the “Deferred income” (as a liability), as
applicable. Progress billings not yet paid by the customer are
included under “Accounts receivable, prepayments and deposits”.
Amounts received before the related work is performed and
presented as “Deferred income” under “Accounts payable and
accruals”.
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(i)

()]

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Consumables
Consumables comprise tools and are stated at cost.

When consumables are consumed, the carrying amount of those
consumables is recognised as an expenditure in the period in which
the consumption occurs.

Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(g)), except where the
receivables are inferest-free loans made fo related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less

allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(k) Accounts payable and accruals

()

Accounts payable and accruals are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

(m) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these

amounts are stated at their present values.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(m) Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the
Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having
a detailed formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

(n) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the income and
expenditure account except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in reserve,

in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in reserve, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits. Apart from differences
which arise on initial recognition of assets and liabilities, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the asset can be utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(o) Provisions and contingent liabilities
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Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Council has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(p) Income recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the income and expenditure, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, income is recognised in the income and
expenditure account as follows:

(i) Government subventions
Government subventions consist of revenue subventions for recurrent
activities and capital subventions for fixed asset purchases.

Revenue subventions are recognised as income in the income and
expenditure account when there is reasonable assurance that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching with them and
that the subvention will be received. Revenue subventions that
compensate the Group for expenditure incurred are recognised
as income in the income and expenditure account on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenditure are incurred.

Capital subventions that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are initially recognised in capital subvention fund and
consequently recognised in income and expenditure account
over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(p) Income recognition (continued)
(i) Government subventions (continued)

Unspent subventions for recurrent activities and fixed assets
purchases arising in the financial year will be retained by

the Council as reserves up to a limit as agreed with the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“the
Government’) (see note 11(e)). Amount in excess of the limit will be
returned to the Government in the following financial year.

(ii) Contract revenue

When the outcome of a service contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue from a fixed price contract is recognised using
the percentage of completion method, measured by reference
to the percentage of contract costs incurred to date to estimated
total contract costs for the contract.

When the outcome of a service contract cannot be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

(iii) Income from provision of services

Income from provision of services is recognised when the related

services are rendered.

(ivRental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in the income and expenditure account in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in the income and expenditure account
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments

receivable.

(v) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
inferest method.
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2 FEEETHER (8) 2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(q) INEKIRE (q) Translation of foreign currencies
AR BINEZX S 17335 B 8YYNEEPEZR Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign
RE - PN ABNEIRE EMEY exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
BEBIZ RS Bk 5 BYYNSER RS o liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
ER BB LIS EEBNTET - exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains

and losses are recognised in the income and expenditure account.

PIEEL S ASTENINEIEE R E Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
BESIGRZHINEERIRS o historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign

exchange rates ruling at the fransaction dates.

EEEIMECSINEBIZEEZ B BY98 The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into

M ERMEESERIRS RERE « BE Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
BEXRIBEBLZRE BB gYINEE exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet
RIRS LB o TELNERESER items are translated info Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
AT ENEZEINE R DR exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
REEED o exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income

and accumulated separately in the exchange reserve.

RESEEINECESR B On disposal of an enterprise outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
R B B IEBINES TR RS E amount of the exchange differences recognised in reserve which
REFSOEAIEREBENINSS relate to that enterprise is reclassified from reserve to the income and
IEEA o expenditure account when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
n BFEATL (r) Related parties
(o) WEBLA N AT > BIEZATOE% (a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
ANTBIR 2B related to the Group if that person:
(i) IZEHRILEIRHIER (i) has control or joint control over the Group;
li) HEBEEAFL] : 5 (i) has significant influence over the Group; or
lii) REEREET LN IERE (iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
BAE - or the Group's parent.
(b) WRF S NINEDERE - Bl (b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
ERTEBEIHT ¢ conditions applies:
il ZERREENEF—&B8 il The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(GIEISYNS RO EYNSEIE] (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
HIWNEBRTKI BT - subsidiary is related to the others).

@ £ENB HKPC



2 ERBEPER (B)
(n BRIEAL (&)
(b) WS FINEDRH - Bl
EREEENRES - (8)

il "~ REBBRS—SEENHEN
IASEER (AB BB
BEBE PRENTHBEN
TFUSEEX) -

(i) WREBEEQ—FH=1NEE

(iv) — RSB

v ZEREREENFREBDR
B H I ERNESRBA M
ROVBEBIRTRAISTE -

vi) %2 B2 H EZSE(aBALTR
EA TR R -

(vii) =3 SE(a)iJE A PTIREA T
SLEREEAFENAEHE
B (OxEREELT) B’J?’?fﬁ
BIEAS o

1@)\9’]5&%%E}5553ﬁ§%§§%?&%

WT P BHBARBIBNLE
RERS -
@%E%MWE

SIS RN T HB(EEMH
ﬁﬁ%EEJMza  BUERESEBRE
F?]J%E’JI@%T%WEW%%I o BL(Z
SN BRRAEBNIRS

SEWERBETESRISSH B ER
EBIRTERNERRE o

identified in (a).

in their dealings with the entity.

consolidated accounts.

IRBME
Notes to the Accounts

(LOBHS /R8T Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(r) Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(il One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

(vii) A person identified in (al(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are

first effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Council. Of these, none of the developments is relevant to the Group’s

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period.
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4 BEEE 4 Fixed assets
(o) €8 (a) The Group
FEERAN
EENKE BER®RE
HKPC Furniture
Building held Leasehold and
for own use improvements equipment
RE : Cost:
1R2012FE4318 At 1 April 2012 $267,784,136  $30,695,598 $140,300,405 $438,780,139
RE&HE Exchange adjustments - - 20,061 20,061
e Additions - 2,280,157 13,686,912 15,967,069
RE Disposals - - (10,105,408) (10,105,408)
Tz RHRNBAT Transferred from a non-controlled
& (Bystd) subsidiary (note (d)) - 331,230 18,669,602 19,000,832
[R20185E38318 At3IMarch203 $267,784,136  $33,306,985  $162,571,572 $463,662,693
KEHHE : Accumulated depreciation:
1R2012F4318 At 1 April 2012 $116,354,908 $19,856,456 $99,983,401 $236,194,765
RERE Exchange adjustments - - 21,046 21,046
FENE Charge for the year 5,355,683 2,436,593 17,521,293 25,313,569
RERED Written back on disposals - - (9,998,556) (9,998,556)
RS RHRNBAT Transferred from a non-controlled
YNGR subsidiary (note (d)) - 270,544 13,063,998 13,334,542
ﬁ§201353ﬂ315 __At3imarch20 $121,710,591 $22,563,593  $120,591,182 $264,865,366
REBE : Net book value:
1R2013FE38318 At 31 March 2013 $146,073,545 $10,743,392 $41,980,390 $198,797,327
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4 BEEE (B)
(o) £8 (&)

IRBME
Notes to the Accounts

(LOBHS /R8T Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4 Fixed assets (continued)

(a) The Group (continued)

FEER HEEF
HEDKE HELE BERRE R58
HKPC Furniture
Building held Leasehold and
for own use  improvements equipment Total
RE : Cost:
[R20NF4R18 At 1 April 2011 $267,784,136 $27,469,671  $133,845,744  $429,099,551
RERE Exchange adjustments = = 83,702 83,702
= Additions - 3,880,136 12,989,794 16,869,930
RE Disposals - (654,209) (6,618,835) (7,273,044)
K2012F3B3E  AtSIMarch202 $267,784136 530,695,598 _5140,300,405 _ $438,780,139
KEHHE : Accumulated depreciation:
[R20NF4518 At 1 April 2011 $110,999,226 $18,824,222 $91,448,122  $221,271,570
RS RE Exchange adjustments - - 65,773 65,773
FENE Charge for the year 5,355,682 1,662,602 14,944,436 21,962,720
RERED Written back on disposals = (630,368 16,474,930) (7,105,298
[R2012F3 8318 At 31 March 2012 $116,354,908 $19,856,456 $99,983,401 $236,194,765
REEE : Net book value:
[R2012E3 8318 At 31 March 2012 $151,429,228 $10,839,142 $40,317,004  $202,585,374
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REMEE
Notes to the Accounts

(OB 7S EELT Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4 BEEE (18)

4 Fixed assets (continued)

(b) £EENF (b) The Council
=L HERF
EENKE HELE BAR®RE
HKPC Furniture
Building held Leasehold and
for own use improvements equipment
RE: Cost:
1R2012F4318 At 1 April 2012 $267,784,136  $30,695,598 $138,682,322 $437,162,056
=1 Additions - 1,899,739 13,590,592 15,490,331
RE Disposals - - (10,062,448)  (10,062,448)
RIESEFINBAT Transferred from a non-controlled
& (Byatid) subsidiary (note (d)) - 331,230 18,669,602 19,000,832
[R20133EE  AfSIMarch2003 L $267,784,136  $32,926,567 _$160,880,068 _$461,590,771
REHHE : Accumulated depreciation:
1R2012F4318 At 1 April 2012 $116,354,908  $19,856,456  $98,885,354 $235,096,718
FEWE Charge for the year 5,355,683 2,353,086 17,391,320 25,100,089
RERED Written back on disposals - - (9,963,735) (9,963,735)
RIESZFINEAT Transferred from a non-controlled
&\ (Mustd) subsidiary (note (d)) - 270,544 13,063,998 13,334,542
1R2013E33318 At 31 March 2013 $121,710,591  $22,480,086 $119,376,937 $263,567,614
REFE : Net book value:
1R2013E38318 At 31 March 2013 $146,073,545 $10,446,481 $41,503,131  $198,023,157
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IRBME
Notes to the Accounts

(LOBHS /R8T Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4 BEEE (B) 4 Fixed assets (continued)
b)£EENB (18) (b) The Council (continued)
FIEBA HEETF
HEDKE WEIR BERRE RE
HKPC Furniture
Building held Leasehold and

for own use  improvements equipment Total
RE Cost:
R20nE4518 At 1 April 2011 $267,784,136 $27,469,671 $132,137,563  $427,391,370
=1 Additions = 3,880,136 12,720,382 16,600,518
RE Disposals = (654,209) (6,175,623) (6,829,832)
KR2012%38318  AtSIMarch2012 §267,784,136 _ $30,695,598 __ $138,682,322 _ $437,162,036
REHHE : Accumulated depreciation:
R20nF4818 At 1 April 2011 $110,999,226 $18,824,222 $90,114,211  $219,937,659
FERE Charge for the year 5,355,682 1,662,602 14,855,378 21,873,662
RERD Written back on disposals - (630,368) (6,084,235) (6,714,603
[R20126£3 5318 At 31 March 2012 $116,354,908 $19,856,456 $98,885,354  $235,096,718
REFE : Net book value:
[R2012623 5318 At 31 March 2012 $151,429,228 $10,839,142 $39,796,968  $202,065,338

(c) FFIEBRANEE D NIEDIMRSS - (c) The HKPC Building held for own use is situated in Hong Kong and is

WD EESE ST - held under a medium-term lease.

(d) 201286113918 - £EENBB—FRIE (d) On 1 November 2012, Automotive Parts and Accessory Systems R&D

SIS EAT - REBEEL IR Centre Limited, a non-controlled subsidiary of the Council, transferred
EEEOINBEAD  SEAEEE all its fixed assets to the Council at their book carrying value as at 31
EED2012F108310EBEEE October 2012.

ANEEND °
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REMEE
Notes to the Accounts

(OB 7S EELT Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5 WBATKRE 5 Investments in subsidiaries
£ £ENB
The Group The Council
| 2013 202 [N 2012
FELETHRD - Unlisted shares, at cost
BERAESE $10,000 $10,000  $20,020,000 $20,020,000
B REEE Less: Impairment loss - - (1,288,000) (1,288,000)
$10,000 $10,000 $18,732,000 $18,732,000

SERLEENBSBINBEATNIR2013F38
1BEVEFEW T

are as follows:

FBRLE

Proportion of ownership interest

i
LENR
B8

Held by the
Council

B
KWE&RT
58

Held by
subsidiaries

Details of the Group’s and the Council’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2013

IBXE

Principal
activities

SRR E&TR £EER

2E &R =5

Place of Particulars of Group's

incorporation issued and effective

and operations  paid up capital interest

AESPHTER Automotive Parts and &8 BHHKD 100%
BRO|\ERATe Accessory Systems R&D Hong Kong 10,0007%

Centre Limited ['APAS Ltd") @

LENRE (1218) HKPC Technology (Holdings| &8 BHEHKD 100%
BRAG Company Limited Hong Kong 10,0007%

FEN (BR) Productivity (Holdings) &8 BHHKD 100%
ERAT Limited Hong Kong 20,000,00070

SEN (BN) 23 Productivity (Guangzhoul ] BIEHKD 100%
BB T Consulting Co. ltd. * PRC 2,400,00075

EEN (BR) #EH Productivity (Dongguan] 0E BHEHKD 100%
BRAT Consulting Co. Utd. * PRC 5,000,0007%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

EXB
Dormant

LENEZNRES
BREHY
Commercialisation of
patents and project
deliverables of HKPC

REER

Investment holding

BRI R
Consultancy and
fraining services

BENEHIRE
Consultancy and
fraining services



fREMEE
Notes to the Accounts

(LOBHS /R8T Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5 WBATKRE (‘ff) 5 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

EEREENBYNEATR2013FE3S Details of the Group’s and the Council's subsidiaries as at 31 March 2013
PHABWT (,%g;) are as follows: (continued)
gL %
Proportion of ownership interest
@ #
i (AT ERTR £EER 4ENR KWEBAT
2EE BEEx 5 %8 e fEXB
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation issued and effective  Held by the Held by  Principal
and operations  paid up capital interest Council subsidiaries  activities
R NES) Productivity (Shenzhen] @ BHEEHKD 100% = 100% BEREIRE
BRAT Consulting Co. ltd. * PRC 1,610,0007% Consuliancy and
fraining services
WIREEEN Shenzhen SZ - HK e NERHRMB 64.94% - 04.94%  ERIRISHIRE
ENERATH Productivity Foundation PRC 1,540,000 Consultancy and
Co. Lid * fraining services
RIRBEED Shenzhen SZ - HK 0B ARHRMB 64.94% - 100% B3RS
B Productivity Foundation PRC 50,000 Training services
Training Insfitute
NEBEREBERAT  ECOLED Lighting &8 BEHKD 51% - 5% HBERD
Technology Limited Hong Kong 6,122,4007C Under Deregistration

@ EZRNBAIRRFEENFMAI  SEBREDBWNT @ This subsidiary was incorporated for a specific purpose where its management was directly

HEIo  HEEERNEEEN - Bt - EXWE
NIOWREXBEW L EBEELEENBNRSKE
A - AREENBH KM BAINH B RCSH R HE
EHEREATE - LENBRRREELEENSN
RERESHEIBENNBATHEXRIAEKX ° 5
Z B DWIFBE TS SEIE TS °

REBEBF - £ENBSABTEHHAARERPILE
RAIRTNEE RS - ARFBHHARREEDL
BIRADHEENBR2012ENE18EH - HEEN
EBEANLENBPHMIINGP CRESBH-HITR
FEL) - ENFERE - AEFPHHRRERS
BRREREL - WIHEENTREZAHFHRRE
E%‘uﬁﬂﬁ@ﬁﬂ’ﬂ@ﬁﬁ o RIEANRIH RANRET
BRBLEBITEE - %BBPITEHIMA (BBELH
J%%DF@%W?\) REERAMARNEES - A8
REENBSHERE - w@f%&ﬁﬁ%%&%)ﬁqﬂwﬁﬂﬁ
RIAWESZRBAAEFHHAREERPIVNEREA
jfm@Zu@ﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁ%&f%ﬁ%%%%@J?E/%ﬂ% ©

MEBATNFRK B R201266128318 -

appointed by the Government and its operation is directly subvented by the Government.
Accordingly, this subsidiary’s results of operations are not included in the consolidated accounts
of the Council as the Council does not have control nor significant influence over the financial
and operating policies of the subsidiary. The accumulated surplus of the subsidiary not dealt
with in the consolidated accounts of the Council are not considered to be material by the
Council. The subsidiary is not audited by KPMG.

In accordance with the funding agreement signed by the Government, the Council and APAS
Ltd, APAS Ltd had merged with the Council on 1 November 2012 and all its business had been
transferred to the Council where it is operated by the Council within a new internal division of
the Council ("APAS Division”). Under the funding agreement, APAS Division will be fully funded by
the Government and shall continue to discharge the mission of APAS Ltd. Unspent grants from
Innovation and Technology Fund (“ITF*) will be recognised as deferred government grants and
all income of APAS Division (including interest of grants and commercialisation income) will be
returned to ITF and not counted in the reserve of the Council. The Board of Directors of APAS Ltd
has resolved that, subject to the completion of the necessary legal procedures in relation to the
merger, APAS Ltd will be wound up by way of voluntary liquidation by shareholders.

The subsidiaries have their financial accounting period ended on 31 December 2012.
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REMEE
Notes to the Accounts

(OB 7S EELT Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6 BEENTEERS 6 Interest in an associate
£B8
The Group
| 2013 ] 2012
fEIGIBEE Share of net assets $1,506,230 $1,465,890
=/ 8)R2013FE33318895F 150N - Details of the associate as at 31 March 2013 are as follows:
BREBATHE
SRR E#TR BB E
EiEMmes BEER Proportion
Place of Particulars of of ownership
incorporation issued and  interest held by FBEZS
and operations paid up capital a subsidiary  Principal activity
AR#
RMB
ERABLEED Chongqing - Hong D& 3,000,000 40% BRI RIBEIARTS
REDNERAT Kong Productivity The PRC Consultancy and
Promotion Cenfer fraining services

Company Limited

SNTWIFBEERBETEIEHAT The associate is not audited by KPMG.

B NTINEHFENB2ON - Summary financial information on the associate:
BE =1 WA &R (B51R)
Assets Liabilities i Revenue  Profit/(loss)
2013 2013
100% 100 per cent $4,161,715 $(396,142) $3,765,573 $96,296 $54,361
EEER R Group's effective interest 1,664,686 (158,456) 1,506,230 38,519 21,744
2012 2012
100% 100 per cent $4,064,449 $(399,725) $3,664,724 $ = $(39,268)
EEER R Group’s effective interest 1,625,780 (159,890) 1,465,890 = (15,707)

@ H£ENB HKPC



7 BUEERR - RVRIBEREE

IRBME
Notes to the Accounts

(LOBHS /R8T Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 Accounts receivable, prepayments and deposits

58 LENS
The Group The Council
| 2018 202 [ 2012
FEITER TR Accounts receivable $19,053,252 $26,101,659 $18,524,324 $25,069,510
YENHIE - 18% Prepayments, deposits
MEANEUNFRIE and other receivables 30,247,499 22,001,169 30,238,108 21,331,327
$49,300,751 $48,102,828 $48,762,432 $46,400,837
IAEaE Representing:
& Current $30,838,494 $41,072,325 $30,300,175 $39,370,334
JERED Non-current 18,462,257 7,030,503 18,462,257 7,030,503
$49,300,751 $48,102,828 $48,762,432 $46,400,837
(a) FEUBRFRIRE (a) Impairment of accounts receivable

FRIAR ROV BB BB A R AREC IR -
BRIFEBRREEN ORI RIVTEE
KRIE - BN - BEGESER
IDEEIBIERR (2 EMYEE2(g)l)

NERELHRROBEGENEE)

Impairment losses in respect of accounts receivable are recorded

using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that

recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss

is written off against accounts receivable directly (see note 2(g)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year is

as follows:

EBREENS
The Group and the Council

| 2013 ] 2012
R4FE At 1 April $ - $149.170
BEEEED Impairment loss reversed - (10,000}
EEHNARNDRE Uncollectible amounts written off = (139,170)
12383318 At 31 March $ - $ -

1220138383318 201243583318 -
EEREENBREHRESIFTERE
RUEBIEULRRR

At 31 March 2013 and 2012, none of the Group’s and the Council’s
accounts receivable was individually determined to be impaired.
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Notes to the Accounts

(OB 7S EELT Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 FEWERR - FBIUNMBRIRSE (&) 7 Accounts receivable, prepayments and
deposits (contfinued)

(b) 3 R B BY FE U BR R (b) Accounts receivable that are not impaired
FEINEER IR HESTRE - 85 Accounts receivable is due at the date of billing. Further details on
B EBBERNE —FSEES NN the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 22(al).
5t22(a) °
JEBRIS LA R AE BBV EIN The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither
ARRBVRRET DT D - individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:
£8 SENB
The Group The Council

| 2013 2012 [T 2012

JERHESURIE Neither past due nor impaired $12,515,140 $16,581,919 $11,980,344 $15,946,683

wE—EER Less than 1 month past due $4,248,139 $5,583,340 $4,248,355 $5,241,982
wHI—2—={@F 1to 3 months past due 1,474,936 1,993,695 1,475,133 1,993,695
wH—=1@ELLE More than 3 months past due 815,037 1,942,705 820,492 1,887,150

$6,538,112 $9,519,740 $6,543,980 $9,122,827

$19,053,252 $26,101,659 $18,524,324 $25,069,510

SR HA DRI E BV FE U R ER 25 23T HA Y Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
M RERCHENANIEEZTST range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
B -

380 AR UN OB R {E BV R U FRER &2 Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
B2 ERG BT HREBIIEZ, of independent customers that have a good track record with the
B - RELERKER - BIREERE Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no
WS K8 - mMASERRARIS impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
BROTZHND - RIvEREEE as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
WEE 2 7 s S iSeasH IR B S - balances are still considered fully recoverable.

@ £ENB HKPC



IRBME
Notes to the Accounts

(LOBHS /R8T Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RITERAREREE 8 Cash at bank and in hand
&8 £ENB
The Group The Council
| 2013 202 | ETEN 2012
—BEERHN Fixed deposits with maturity
ERER S over 3 months at acquisition | $58,267,536 __ $41195,642 _ $54,017,536 513,450,415
WOGER Cash at bank $144,944,734 $145,664,620 = $124,407,412 $142,295,076
RE Cash in hand 450,608 294,111 345,578 258,764
$145,395,342 $145,958,731  $124,752,990 $142,553,840
BEBSBExRMETIT  Total cash at bank and in
BRAIRERER hand in the balance sheets  $203,662,878  $187,154,373 = $178,770,526  $156,004,255
—BEEERHN Fixed deposits with maturity
TCHER over 3 months at acquisition =~ (58,267,536) (41,195,642)
melRTMEaRA  Cash and cash equivalents
RERIRET in the consolidated
ZBY) cash flow statement $145,395,342 $145,958,731

[R2013FE33318 » EBREENSHIER
TERRBEHNEERRTHORED R
717,862,8627T (20124F : 28,381,6187T)
K:7,2787C (20124F : 12,66670) » &=
REVEE SR F 1B AL IR DB BUS MBI 8IS
PEFERIAAREST -

Cash at bank of the Group and the Council as at 31 March 2013 includes
$17,862,862 (2012: $28,381,618) and $7,278 (2012: $12,666) respectively
placed with banks in the PRC, the remittance of which is subject to

relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated

by the PRC government.
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Notes to the Accounts

(OB 7S EELT Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 ENIRMRESTEHR 9 Accounts payable and accruals
58 SENB
The Group The Council
| 2018 202 [EESEN 2012
FETERER Trade payables $19,486,398 $21,984,486 $19,104,987 $21,984,486
TN Deferred income 67,103,955 70,799,755 62,661,962 69,080,863
FRUERR Receipts in advance 9,138,647 10,580,676 7,777,765 5,929,892
FREERE Provision for annual leave
(BoEE(a) compensation (note () 18,612,137 20,503,668 18,612,137 20,503,668
FEStERR Accruals and
EHAMENR other payables 33,836,692 30,132,516 32,811,527 28,552,824

$148,177,829 $154,001,101 = $140,968,378 $146,051,733

TEENERKESTEREHIR—F All of the accounts payables and accruals are expected to be settled

RSB o within one year.
(a) FEREERR (a) Provision for annual leave compensation
S8R
£ENB =S SEND
The Group and
the Council The Group The Council
2013 2012 2012
K418 At 1 April $20,503,668 $22,604,441 $22,579,668
EEHBERING R Additional provision made 289,527 1,554,322 1,554,322
E )RR s Provision utilised (2,181,058) (3,655,095) (3,630,322)
1R34318 At 31 March $18,612,137 $20,503,668 $20,503,668
RESEREEAN)  RBm—= Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, staff members
FTHRETJ=FEDTKRER (B1F who have completed a full year of services are entitled to take at
EHERAFRREE) BZTCKER least seven days of leave (including Sundays and Public Holidays)
BREE—/\BERNEBBHS - consecutively within one calendar year. Any staff member who leaves
WELIRER; - Ho=a T REE his or her employment is entitled to annual leave compensation.

T - IERATRRERE R E B E R B

She/he is entitled to receive in cash the annual leave pay earned but

NIREHRE - FREEREEARS not utilised. Provision is made for the employees’ untaken annual
RS LB R ERAEREAZEMm ST leave balances at the end of the reporting period.
1=z

@ H£ENB HKPC



10 BN FEZEFHNELRITIRER - &

n

WIS NTRBERBUL I K S
NSTE/AE]
BNEZEHNBATRE « BIUBE
NIRBRER I EBADREL
RELIP - AR - WITILRKERUM
g/ BE -

IRBME
Notes to the Accounts

(LOBHS /R8T Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 Amount due to a non-controlled subsidiary, amount due

to an associate and amounts due from/to subsidiaries

Amount due to a non-controlled subsidiary, amount due to an associate
and amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest

bearing and recoverable/repayable on demand.

BARAEBNERGGE 1N Capital subvention fund and reserves
£8 SENB
The Group The Council
| 20 Qg 20 2012
EXRENE Capital subvention
(BgEE(a)) fund (note (al) $231,304,031 $231,915,052  $231,304,031 $231,915,052
UINE BN ls Revenue reserve
(BgEE(b)) (note (b)) 68,366,108 46,914,080 68,925,696 47,679,734
$299,670,139  $278,829,132 $300,229,727  $279,594,786
RERE Exchange reserve
(BoEE(c) (note (c)) 2,682,725 2,790,934

IR AR Non-controlling interests
(BoEE(d) (note (d))

$302,352,864 $281,620,066

1,597,186 2,514,404

$303,950,050 $284,134,470
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RBME
Notes to the Accounts

(OB 7S EELT Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

N EXENERERE (B) 1N Capital subvention fund and reserves (continued)
(o) BEXERIE (a) Capital subvention fund
EBREENS
The Group and the Council
| 201 ] 2012
BARNE. ARl $231,915,052 $232,416,514
RIEEABEEEN Government subvention for
BN EHD purchase of fixed assets
- EBARE - funds spent $17,010,000 $16,337,000
—BRDBSTE (2EMELIH) -~ RAE (note (iil - 4,816,991
BRI EAT Transfer from a non-controlled subsidiary
- EXEMNE — capital subvention fund, net of
RREHITE accumulated depreciation 5,666,290 -
Be /(f) I=R8 Transfer from/(to) income and
PlEc¥ N IIEERY expenditure account fo match
EEA with the related costs of
- REETEE (B8),/ W& - loss)/gain on disposal of fixed assets (85,637) 181,278
- FEEER - depreciation charge for the year
(S EMEE4(b) (see note 4(b)) (25,100,089) (21,873,662)
EEWIRERRETEEE Transfer from income and expenditure account
BEMATEAENER in relation to the difference between fixed assets
purchased and capital subvention for the year 1,898,415 36,931
__________________________________________________________________________________________ $(6n,021)  $(501,462)
1538318 At 31 March $231,304,031 $231,915,052
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N EXRBEHIESRERE (B)
(o) BAEMHE (8)

i

i) EABEDNZRRILHBEETEE
E BEEENAEERMURDE
BEEENNG (BR) HRER
EmEL -

(i) RBBURNERDESTE - BUSES
KB EBHEBHELEENSRB
BN EREFTTFERNRESE
BIINYBEIMES B B IR FR 122009
TNR - BAFREERN > BN
EmkaEENSHEMBERD
BCSTEIR R (5H1,41087T) » %18
W

(a) 99087T - UHLEENBHR—
BBHRSAHECA + &

(b) 4208&7T - UHEENBIRITIR
BOURMAGRE<A -

[R2012F 38318 IEFER - BEA

EIRDBET8#:5R4,816,991 0 DA
i - BRZEIBEBER201243

BRR - REBWRBHER °

IRBME
Notes to the Accounts

(LOBHS /R8T Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11 Capital subvention fund and reserves (continued)
(a) Capital subvention fund (continued)
Notes:

(i) This fund was created for recording the cumulative effect of the
purchase of fixed assets, depreciation charges of fixed assets
and gain/(loss) on disposal of fixed assets.

(i) Under the Government's RAE, the Financial Services and the
Treasury Bureau of the Government invites bids via Innovation and
Technology Commission (“ITC”) for additional recurrent resources
on top of the annual block grant. In November 2009, ITC informed
the Council that the Government had granted two bids (in total of
$14,100,000 RAE fund). The details were as follows:

(a) $9,900,000 for setting up a new electromagnetic compatibility
chamber in the Council; and

(b) $4,200,000 for upgrading the current reliability testing
services of the Council.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, an amount of $4,816,991 in
respect of the RAE fund was used for the purchase of equipment.
Since the projects have been completed in March 2012 no more
fund was granted to the Council in current year.

(b) L\ l@E (b) Revenue reserve
£E £ENB
The Group The Council
| 2013 g 2013 2012
R4EH At 1 April $46,914,080 $37,216,963  $47,679,734 $39,697,382
EEISTES Transfer from income and
expenditure account 21,452,028 9,697,117 21,245,962 7,982,352
1R38318 At 31 March $68,366,108 $46,914,080 = $68,925,696 $47,679,734

WABBRR S CREENBSRES
BREH&ER (BB MESL -

This reserve was created for the purpose of recording the Council's and
the Group’s accumulated surplus/(deficit).

3 ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 @



RBME
Notes to the Accounts

(OB 7S EELT Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

N EXBHESRERE (B)
(c) REFEE

11 Capital subvention fund and reserves (continued)
(c) Exchange reserve

The Group
| 2013 | 2012
R4AF1E At 1 April $2,790,934 $2,181,684
MEDEZEFFRE Exchange differences on translation of
ERESRE accounts of operations in the PRC (108,209) 609,250
R38318 At 31 March $2,682,725 $2,790,934

RERBREREETBRINEBERE
MELBPTHERER - WEIZRHY
FH20qTEY ST HRRIR ©

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the accounts of operations outside
Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2(q).

(d) FEs=HI M REZS (d) Non-controlling interests
The Group
| 203 | 2012
418 At 1 April $2,514,404 $3,093,714
EEIREHE Share of exchange reserve 7,982 23,720
FEEGEE Share of loss for the year (925,200) (603,030)
R33318 At 31 March $1,597,186 $2,514,404
(e) BFEBUNEZEA (e) Annual block grant

RIEBUS B4 E DS E2009F 6322
BESN(TRZHRE R (B
#%)) 55880 - EENBILIBNEE
ERREEEHPEHLBMENTER
BIERER - TREETEE - %58
B RNEESREENBRBENY
HEEMENSFTFEBINEEENR
B915% ° 2012/2013 FENBINTEEE
B #2828 /31.837/2 7T(2011/2012F & -
1.78f270) - EENBBEIETIRER
FEAMUAETE 2 88 BITENBUT
BWEER) -

@ o

In accordance with section 8 of the Memorandum of Administrative
Arrangement (“"MAA”) dated 22 June 2009 signed between the
Government and the Council, the Council is allowed to keep any
savings from its annual block grant as reserves. At any one point

in fime the level of accumulated savings from the Council’s annual
block grant shall not exceed 15% of its annual block grant in the
current financial year. The total block grant for the year of 2012/2013
was $183.7 million (2011/2012: $178.0 million). The annual block grant
from the Government in the current and prior years has been fully
expended by the Council in accordance with the MAA.
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11 Capital subvention fund and reserves (continued)
(f) Capital management
The Group defines “capital” as including all components of capital
subvention fund and reserves. Trading balances that arise as a result
of trading transactions with other group companies are not regarded
by the Group as capital.

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to enable the Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due for the
foreseeable future.

The Group’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed
with due regard to the capital management practices of the Group.
Neither the Council nor its subsidiaries are subject to externally
imposed capital requirement in the current and prior years.

R ©

12 BUFERD 12 Government subvention

ESBEREENB The Group and the Council
| 203 2012
e EEeE L) Subvention for recurrent activities $172,403,406 $161,641,000

13 ARFFUA 13 Service income
&= £ENS
The Group The Council

| 2013 Qo 2013 | 2012
BRER Consultancy $305,885,672 $275,344,883 $301,737,405  $270,612,320
=3 Training 19,493,643 22,073,216 18,537,215 21,583,253
RIS TIEIRFS Manufacturing support 22,354,589 21,242,639 22,354,589 21,242,639
HEHMPRES Publications and advertising 584,328 688,065 584,328 688,065
RESRERE Exhibitions and study mission 1,433,287 14,955,167 10,348,456 13,677,023

$359,751,519  $334,303,970 $353,561,993 $327,803,300
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14 EfIRA 14 Other income
&8 £ENB
The Group The Council
| 2013 | A0l 2013 | 2012
HIA Rental income $8,034,307 $7,861,921 $8,034,307 $7,861,921
FEUA Interest income 1,288,477 1,276,917 1,143,910 1,229,177
Eh Others 1,314,418 1,453,627 915,664 627,250
$10,637,202 $10,592,465 $10,093,881 $9,718,348
15 BEFHE 15 Staff emoluments
&£8 £ENB
The Group The Council
st &oERG Salaries and allowances $257,856,880 $244,293,023 $255,301,478 $241,411,634
Kimbiiz Gratuities 2,021,211 1,237,301 2,021,211 1,237,301
REREBERE Directorate passages 301,621 417,448 301,621 417,448
BEFT/E - [EEK Overtime, subsistence and
H 285 other allowances 1,241,247 559,960 1,241,247 559,960
BEEER Staff housing and
RERRE furniture allowances 10,836,409 9,928,052 10,836,409 9,928,052
[ EA=ESG=D=A:1a] Staff education allowances 1,689,757 1,893,640 1,689,757 1,893,640
BINESTEIEE Retirement schemes
contribution 27,076,748 28,270,561 27,076,748 28,270,561
o eEnEE] Medical benefits scheme 8,689,460 7,605,011 8,689,460 7,605,011

$309,713,333  $294,204,996 $307,157,931  $291,323,607

BRY L - —EBEMAREBEHEE
B (yahe) - MBS -

(a) HZE2013F3IFIHIEFER » E£8
NERFRESSHESI RS (20124 ¢

2,840,7577%)

H (MF5$18) ©

BEIA—RRITE=

b) HEZE2013FE3FNBLEFER > BE
B B2 5 & 5t 5R14,501,2827T (2012
& :11,885,80270) &6,834,5717C
(20124F : 6,304,69275) © E ©D Bl 5t
ANEBREENBNEEEEX:H

(FtEE18) ©

@ o

In addition to the above, certain staff costs are charged to other
expenses (see notfe 18] with details as follows:

(a) Temporary staff costs of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013
amounting to Nil (2012: $2,840,757) has been charged to general
and administrative expenses under note 18.

(b) Project staff costs for the year ended 31 March 2013 amounting to
$14,501,282 (2012: $11,885,802) and $6,834,571 (2012: $6,304,692)
have been charged to project related expenses of the Group and the
Council respectively under note 18.
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16 SR EIRN S i
SREEAEMNAEQEEREENBR
HRBATIR VB (Frz ~ 25 B
s B EZEHR) BEBWOT

16 Senior management’s remuneration
The aggregate remuneration (salaries, allowances, benefits in kind
and provident fund contributions) received by the senior management
for their services rendered to the Group and the Council are listed as
follows:

EBREENS
The Group and the Council

| 2013 ] 2012

BEBE - RE Agnes Mak, Executive Director $3,403,977 $3,249,307
MER @ 8li8= (=A%)  Leo Lam, Director (Business Innovation) 2,510,595 =
BN - BliRE (RIFg2E)  Joseph Poon, Director (Technology Development) 2,432,309 2,331,070
IS - BliBE ((02EAI%T)  Edmund Sung, Director (Business Innovation) - 1,736,747
MIBE - BiBE (##E=%%)  Tony Lam, Director (Corporate Services) 2,771,680 2,656,821

$11,118,561 $9,973,945

17 Remuneration of council members
During the year, the Chairman and other council members of the Council

17 EENBESESZEHFH M
RER > EENBERERHEMESSS
ZEREMEOLENBRHERAUER

did not receive any remuneration for their services rendered fo the

ETEREY (20127F : ) o Council (2012: $Nil).
18 Ez 18 Other expenses
e £ENB
The Group The Council
| 2013 ] 202 RSN 2012
— R EATESZH General and
administrative expenses $35,750,448 $42,360,781 $35,814,748 $36,394,651
BEMERESZH Project related expenses 164,161,230 147,090,689 157,468,327 151,300,769
REETEE Loss/(gain) on disposal
B8 (&) of fixed assets 85,637 (181,278) 85,637 (181,278)
e Depreciation 25,313,569 21,962,720 25,100,089 21,873,662
Hihsz Other expenses 10,358,560 13,412,932 12,473,897 12,124,338
$235,669,444 $224,645,844 $230,942,698 $221,512,142
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19 RIB 19 Taxation
() IFEWZREMANRER : (a) Taxation in the consolidated income and expenditure

account represents:

| 2013 ] 2012

RERIE — B Current tax — Overseas

FTERIB Provision for the year $191,577 $232,254

BREENBDERESIRES S (R The Council is not subject to any Hong Kong Profits Tax as the Council

RPN B8TFBR BN B S ER has been granted exemption from all Hong Kong taxes by the

18 - HIEBRNTEOEEBNER - Inland Revenue Department under Section 87 of the Inland Revenue
Ordinance.

BREENBNESEWNEATRESR No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the Council’s Hong Kong

2013FE3831H M2012FE3831B =8 subsidiaries has been made as they sustained losses for taxation

FTERNREREERE » WAE2/ES purposes during the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2013.

BANERERS -

S ENBHPENEATNRIE L Taxation for the Council's PRC subsidiaries is charged at the

DENESIRTRARSHE - appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the PRC.

(b)) RBEZHESEHEEUBEBRRE (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting deficit
ELBVEER - at applicable tax rates:

| 2013 ] 2012

MR BIE1E Deficit before taxation $(2,568,906) $(12,329,112)

AR OAEERBBEARR Notional tax on deficit before taxation,
SHERRAIRG BEN calculated at rates applicable to

BEREB surplus/deficit in the jurisdictions concerned $(775,140) $405,543
ROFHNEZENRBEZ 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 96,648 20,915
FEBFRABRIE Tax effect of unused tax losses

BERETE not recognised 943,321 278,914
ENBUEFERIE Tax effect of prior years’ tax

BiENRETE losses utilised (73,252) (473,118
EFRREBEZH Actual tax expense $191,577 $232,254

@ :oreuc
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19 RIE (&) 19 Taxation (continued)
) FEEEBBRITNAIAE (c) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet
Bne: represents:
=
The Group
T 2012
FERE Provision for the year $191,577 $232,254
BN DBEESER PRC Corporate Income Tax paid (186,083) (136,097)
$5,494 $96,157
d)EEREEEHERBS : (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities:
EE1R2013FE335318 7120123831 The Group has no material deferred tax assets or liabilities requiring
BUWHEB REANENELERIBEE recognition as at 31 March 2013 and 2012.
gaeE -
W0 RERERMEE 20 Note to the consolidated cash flow statement
R EIEEESETEHNIRT A A ELE Reconciliation of deficit before taxation to net cash inflow from
BYETER - operations:
| 2013 ] 2012
Eira = iEBEREN Deficit before taxation dealt with in the
MR BIEE consolidated income and expenditure account $(2,568,906) $(12,329,112)
ERERED,(E00) Decrease/(increase) in consumables 57,321 (26,621)
FESRRRR ~ FRIYRIB R Decrease in accounts receivable,
BT A prepayments and deposits 17,264,334 2,129,549
EUIE2IEFHINEAD Decrease in amount due to a
RIE R non-controlled subsidiary (10,170) (27,575)
FEN IR ST & AR Decrease in accounts payable and accruals (5,823,272) (569,577
MBI Interest income (1,288,477) (1,276,917)
REEBCEESGE (NE) Loss/(gain) on disposal of fixed assets 85,637 (181,278)
BEBETE Depreciation 25,313,569 21,962,720
JELESENT) (&382), /18 Share of (profit)/loss of an associate (21,744) 15,707
CERER Exchange differences (590,986) (614,391)
SEIBANFR Net cash inflow from operations $32,417,306 $9,082,505
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21 g 21 Commitments
() ERIEEHESREA (a) As lessee of operating leases
R2013E33318 - EER BTN At 31 March 2013, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease
SIS RKKENNRIERES payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:
RERWD -
=2
The Group

TR EZEY Land and buildings m 2012
B—ERN Within 1 year $1,706,414 $848,500
E_EENTA After 1 year but within 5 years 1,482,298 211,806

$3,188,712 $1,060,306
AEE  RIFEINSEBDWERR During the year, $1,974,625 (2012: $1,794,148) was recognised as an
TR EREPNEEERR,974,625 expenditure in the consolidated income and expenditure account in
7% (20124F : 1,794,1487T) ° respect of leasing of land and buildings.
ELHE RS RE—2RE W The leases typically run for an initial period of one to five years, with
BEREEEER - BEMBIERYY an option fo renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None
EHBEE - SBHESHAESTYER of the leases includes contingent rentals.
% o

(b) ERFEERSLHAAN (b) As lessor of operating leases
1R2013FE38310 ' EBREENB At 31 March 2013, the Group and the Council had future aggregate
BBV H SRR FEIR minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases
NERIEHSRERD T - as follows:
EBREENS

The Group and the Council

TR EZEY Land and buildings m 2012

BE—FR Within 1 year $910,176 $910,176
F_EERFENRN After 1 year but within 5 years - 910,176

$910,176 $1,820,352
EERAS—ROLSRBME - WAS The leases typically run for an initial period of two years, with an
RERIZEN - BRAABKEMDTES option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of
S - SBEEHAESUBHEE - the leases includes contingent rentals.

@ o
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21 & iE (8) 21 Commitments (continued)
(c) 12201338318 @ EHKREHFKNER (c) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2013 not
BRAZHNEARERE  BRWT : provided for in the accounts were as follows:
EBREENS
The Group and the Council
| 2013 ] 2012
221 Contract for $13,439,940 $11,785,996

2rliEREIERNTEEETE 22 Financial risk management and fair values
EBETIEFSHEBERDSELEE R Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the
FEL NARKRINER R - SRR 2 normal course of the Group’s business. The Group'’s exposure to these
HBREENREBHEERAINLE risks and the financial risk management policies and practices used by

I8 - 28T the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(o) EERKE (a) Credit risk
EENEERGFE2REENEDR - The Group's credit risk is primarily atftributable to accounts receivable.
SBEEHIEEESHE  WAKES Management has a credit policy in place and exposure fo these
ESRERBE - credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.
AEENREGENERGESIREN Cash is deposited with financial institutions with sound credit ratings
SRIME R IR R S R BT A ST R and the Group has exposure limif fo any single financial institution.
NEERRE BEREBEBESS Given their high credit ratings, the Group does not expect any of
o NEBNTATE T QS aitstE =k these financial institutions will fail to meet their obligations.

BEEITHE

REE8 EBRAAZENEINE At the balance sheet date, 27% (2012: 18%) of the total accounts
RS IRIEINER R EY27% (20124F : receivable was due from the Group’s five largest customers.

18%) °

FREES T NREREIERIIE Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to
EREEESDNT » YIRMEET7 © credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set out in note 7.
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VLETMRAEREERANEISERE 22Financial risk management and fair values (continued)
(&)

(b) ABEERAR (b) Liquidity risk

SENBRECREERBDELTSH
Ko UERER TR ENIRTRER - /&
NENMERSETREHNEEREH
BEEHE -

M

TBEEBREENBSHEMEER
2013733318 #2012E33318 898
BEENEESKHRTIRIREAESE
EZRWAEK - EBRFEENBEE
ROREB IR —FRATLEKIER
B -

(c) RRRRR

EENBRRBALEEARER
-

(d) S HE LB

EBRMUINEEHEORA RRATS
REVENR ~ BIYRERIRGHREAE
ONEERIRR - INERDZ BIRAEE IS #A2
ZBIEEBINNEECER - B
INERREZREAKE - WRBIR
RN EBER EBSEVRRE
REERSESING - DERRFRAR
BEMBSEIEZIINKE

@ £ENB HKPC

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to satisfy its
contractual and reasonably foreseeable obligations as they fall due.

All financial liabilities of the Group and the Council are carried at
amounts not materially different from their contractual undiscounted
cash flows as at 31 March 2013 and 2012. The earliest date the
Group and the Council are required to settle these liabilities is within
one year or payable on demand.

(c) Interest rate risk

The Council considers that there is no exposure to significant interest
rate risk.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through certain
income and cost which give rise to receivables, payables and cash
balances that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e., a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
Renminbi ('/RMB”). In respect of balances denominated in RMB, the
Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level,
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary
to address short-term imbalances.
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LETMRAKREERANEIRSERE 22Financial risk management and fair values (continued)
(/&)

TRBIEEREENBRES
HRBEERUEENIEER
PN —BEBSHENEERE
EMRBHHNEBRR - BRI
NRA - R LUATFREVERE
BTN

(d) ShEE R B (1) (d) Currency risk (continued)
li) INEE R PR ERE (i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the Council’s exposure
at the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the Group’s functional currency. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposures are shown in Hong Kong dollars,
translated using the spot rate at the year end date.

EBREENDS The Group and the Council
IS R b
(ABTTRENALD)
Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2013 2012
AR# ANEHE
RMB RMB
RITERRIRE Cash at bank and in hand $17,348,283 $10,367,191
[ENERER R IESTE R Accounts payable and accruals (316,853) (555,409)
TR INEE R fem Net exposure to currency risk $17,031,430 $9,811,782

BURE DT
TRIE T RRRBSHRBE
BROVINISPEZR B B) - EATBHEM
TBANREFTABHER T 1/
STENEBRABEGIANARRE
RIS -

(i) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group's surplus after tax (and revenue reserve) that would arise
if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed at that

date, assuming all other risk variables remained constant.
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VLETMRAEREERANEISERE 22Financial risk management and fair values (continued)
(&)

(d) I & @R (18) (d) Currency risk (continued)
(i) BRREDIT (18) (i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)
=] The Group
2013 2012
REeRBRN &R
ShEsER  INABBIRE INESBEZS  INAEBIREES
FHE.(RE) a2 FHE (2E) B2
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) surplus after (decrease) surplus after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange revenue exchange revenue
reserve rates reserve
AR Renminbi 5% $851,572 5% $490,589
(5)% (851,572) (5)% (490,589)
WMREDITRBIRBEHKEH Y The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
NS PER 2 8) 0 BIERNREBRR exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
HEGEUWEEEENIAE instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to
BN EBSHENEMN TR foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period, including
ZONERKE > BIEEBARATL inter-company payables and receivables within the Group
BRANDIERATIDEEE BELLINGY which are denominated in a currency other than the functional
EMSTENENREEIGRER S currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes
BB EARTEEBEGTETINER differences that would result from the translation of the accounts
RNETRUEEE - DM ABE of operations outside Hong Kong into the Group’s presentation
BHRRESEBEINCEHNEBRR currency. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.

CIRANBEMELNESR ° 2012
FENDTEIRERTE °

(e) AREE (e) Fair values
FTE &/ T B R2013%E38318 A All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
2012333 HNEB T B EE /N different from their fair values as at 31 March 2013 and 2012.

BERSEEAESR -

@ H£ENB HKPC
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23 Material related party transactions
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
these accounts, the Group entered into the following material related

party fransactions during the year:

(i) Council Membership of the Council is appointed by Chief Executive of
the Government. The Government has significant influence over the
Council and transactions between the Council and the Government
are considered to be related party transactions and are identified
separately in these accounts. During the year, the Council had the
following material related party transactions with the Government:

| 2013 ] 2012

ITERBU &R - AR : Receipt of government subvention used for:
—BAEEEE - purchase of fixed assets $17,010,000 $16,337,000
— K=EE — recurrent activities 172,403,406 161,641,000
— &R E5TE - RAE = 4,816,991

(i) EEEHMERRABIORS ¢

(ii) Other material related party transactions of the Group
entered into during the year:

Byt
Note 2012
BIEZEFHNEAT Service income earned from a
YSCER BYAR U non-contirolled subsidiary (1 $1,036,714 $2,645,388
BIEZ BT Rental income received from a
UTERBYREE U A non-controlled subsidiary (2) 837,620 1,435,920
5 ¢ Notes:

) TR A SR BB 2T
AR BOVR AR - R
ENBEE IS F S HEMER
HES

BIFE IR BA DRI
AR EBHOERER - W
EENRRAMNES R BIAE
#EE -

(2

(1) Service income earned from a non-controlled subsidiary relates to
services provided and is based on terms similar to the Council’s
transactions with other customers.

(2) Rental income received from a non-confrolled subsidiary relates
to tenancy agreement terms and is based on terms similar to the
Council's transactions with other customers.
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24 REIR
BEEERNVRNERIEES (B
B BRYRBNZE E08R 12
T IR EAFENRERmIF -

25E 1B /B R & E£2013F3831H
ISt FEEERERNNIESE] - #
2R REFETEFTRONZE
HEANEBTR0 - SBSEHEOASE
B ERE 2013438310 FS5HE
EMEREN - MEBEAEXNESRANE
SIRABE %R - EHEB5IaE T
At EBERINES -

K585
L le )
SEHBER
(EBSEEREISHR) 20127818
(1BE]) [ 7 %5Rzz VR
— Hitir s IEIB B 03158 |
(EBHFHEREEAEI0%R) 20131818
[GHYFRE]
(BBUFHEREENE12%) 20131818
[EMERRERNRE ]
(BBUFHREENEI3HR) 2013F1818
[AEEs=2]
(BB S5 201$E28%%) 20131818
[HHENSEATNBRE]
(BBUFEREENEIT) 20151818

[ZRTE]

EBEAFGELIZE] BB RAHNE
BFE - HERIRL - EBMHE - &Kl
BUZST HEBVIEE X B BHR R
EZABEEANTE -

@ £ENB HKPC

24 Comparative figures

Comparative figures in respect of prepayments for fixed assets have been

reclassified from “Accounts receivable, prepayments and deposits” to
“Deposits” to conform to the accounts presentation adopted in current year.

25Possible impact of amendments, new standards and

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year

ended 31 March 2013

Up to the date of issue of these accounts, the HKICPA has issued a
number of amendments, and five new standards which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2013 and which have not been
adopted in these accounts. These include the following which may be

relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements — Presentation of
items of other comprehensive income

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKAS 28, Investments in associates and

Jjoint ventures

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

1July 2012

1January 2013

1January 2013

1 January 2013

1 January 2013

1 January 2015

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the

impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and

financial position.



EENBE [SNEREE RIDERIE o2

HIHAEB AL 2012 . ni tizaaﬁz
Winner of 2012 Asian Most Admired Carlngorga sae o
Knowledge Enterprises Award 5

Awarded by The Hong Kong Cou i
B %

REBAHABHERFRBCHTE  LENBRREECEDEVHAERNNRB RS HBRETRRENDN - WAREEIEHHINE -

To minimize the impact of this publication on global climate change, HKPC's environmental management consultants have performed a
carbon footprint analysis on the printing and distribution of this report. The total carbon emission is offset by means of carbon credits.

BEHRER : OhRIREMSENRIFR 2T Design and Production : Toppan Vite Limited



www hkpc org

VA

FSC

www.fsc.org

RECYCLED

Paper made from
recycled material

FSC™ C021898

RERRAFSC™ BIMERRUBRIRERIAZ BRENR -
Printed on FSC™ certified paper using environmentally
friendly plate system and soy-based inks.



